
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 
  

  
please ask for Ellen Heaney 

direct line 0300 300 4040 
date 27 May 2010 

 
 

CONSTITUTION ADVISORY GROUP 
MEETING  

 
 

Date: 
 

Tuesday, 1 June 2010 

Time: 2.00 p.m. 

Venue: Room 15A, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford 

Members Cllrs Mrs C F Chapman MBE 
D Jones 
M Jones 

Cllrs D Lawrence 
S F Male 
A J Shadbolt 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
  

To receive apologies for absence.  
 

 

2. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
  

To elect the Chairman of the Advisory Group for the 2010-
11 Municipal Year.  
 

 

3. NOTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
  

To consider the notes of the previous meeting held on 1 
April 2010.  
 
Attached.  
 

 



4. REVIEW OF THE POLICY FRAMEWORK - NEW 
REGULATIONS ON CHILDREN'S TRUSTS, CHILDREN 
AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLANS AND CHILD POVERTY. 

 

  
To receive a presentation from the Deputy Chief Executive 
and Director of Children’s Services on recent changes in 
legislation relating to the Children and Young People’s Plan 
and the duty relating to child poverty.  
 
Documentation attached 
 

 

5. REVIEW OF CONSULTATION AND NEGOTIATION 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH PROFESSIONAL 
ASSOCIATIONS (JCNC) 

 

  
To propose an amendment to the Constitution to remove 
the Joint Consultative and Negotiating Committee for 
Primary and Secondary Education as a subsidiary body of 
the General Purposes Committee. 
 
Report of the Director of Customer and Shared Services 
attached.  
 

 

6. CONSULTATION STRATEGY  
  

To consider the aspects of consultation which are already 
covered in the Council’s Communication Strategy, 
Community Engagement Strategy and Consultation Toolkit 
(to be developed in 2010) and to consider whether the 
Constitution Advisory Group recommends having a 
separate strategy.  
 
Report of the Assistant Director, Communications attached.  
 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT DEVELOPMENT 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

  
To consider this matter which was deferred from the last 
meeting (item no.  CAG/09/53 of the notes refers).  
 
Report of the Assistant Director, Development Management 
attached.  
 

 



8. CALL-IN OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS BY MEMBERS 
TO DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

  
To consider amending Delegation No. 4.3.95.1 to require 
Councillors requesting the referral of an item to 
Development Management Committee to provide a 
material planning reason for the request.  
 
Report of the Assistant Director, Development Management 
attached.  
 

 

9. PETITIONS  
  

To consider amendments to the Constitution to incorporate 
new statutory provisions relating to Petitions and e-
Petitions.  
 
Report of the Head of Democratic Services attached. 
 

 

10. AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION  
  

To note a revision and a proposed revision to the Scheme 
of Officer Delegations approved by the Leader of the 
Council.  
 
Report of the Head of Democratic Services to attached.  
 

 

11. WORK PROGRAMME  
  

To receive the work programme for the Advisory Group.  
 
Attached.  
 

 

12. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING  
  

To note that the next meeting of the Advisory Group will be 
held on Thursday 29 July 2010 commencing at 2:00pm in 
Room 13,  Priory House, Chicksands. 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

At a meeting of the CONSTITUTION ADVISORY GROUP held at Room 14A Priory 
House, Chicksands, Shefford on Thursday, 1 April 2010 

 
PRESENT 

 
Cllr S F Male (Chairman) 

 
 

Cllrs Mrs C F Chapman MBE 
D Jones 
M R Jones 
 

Cllrs D J Lawrence 
A Shadbolt 
 

 
 
 
 

Officers in Attendance Mrs K John 
 

Head of Democratic Services 

 Mrs E Malarky 
 

Head of Policy 

 Ms M Peaston Interim Committee Services 
Manager 

 Mrs G Stanton Assistant Director 
Communications 

 
CAG/09/49   Guidance for the managements of events and media relations.  

 
The Group received a report of the Assistant Director (Communications) asking 
for consideration to be given to the formal adoption of  guidance on the 
management of publicity events and activities. Guidance was also sought as to 
whether such a document should be included in the Council’s Constitution or 
elsewhere. 
 
The Group noted the guidance which  would be for use in connection with 
ceremonial, civic and official events. 
 
Members were of the view that the document should not be part of the 
Constitution but should be included in the Councillors’ Guide. 
 
Detailed consideration was given to the wording in the guidance. The Assistant 
Director (Communications) indicated that she would set out at the beginning of 
the document a clear statement that the Leader of the Council and the 
Chairman of the Council have different roles, one being political and one being 
associated with civic and ceremonial matters. 
 
A comment was made about the management of political connotations in press 
releases particularly in view of the forthcoming General Election. It was noted 
that the Communications team was already aware of the need for care in 
relation to comments or quotations which could be considered political. The 
Group was advised that if they considered a press release or quotation by an 
officer to be political, they should report this matter to the Monitoring Officer.  
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 5



DCW -  01.04.10 
Page 2  

 

 

The Advisory Group wished to record their support for the political neutrality of 
the officers and observance of the proper protocol. 
 
Further detailed amendments to the wording of the document were discussed 
and agreed as set out below. 
 
AGREED 
 

1. that the document, as amended, should be included in the 
Councillors’ Guide and not in the Council’s Constitution; 

 
2. that the following amendments be made to the document which 

should be re-circulated to members of the Advisory Group before 
being finalised and added to the Councillors’ Guide. 

 
Location Wording to be inserted/amended 

 
As a note at the beginning of the 
document 

An explanation to be given as to the 
political, or civic and ceremonial, 
nature of the Leader’s and the 
Chairman’s representation of the 
Council. 
 
 

Paragraph 1, after the second 
sentence begins 
 

If it is a Council event, the chairman 
and the Vice-Chairman should also 
be involved. 

Paragraph 8 Indicate that invitees may (not will) 
include appropriate persons from 
local authorities, etc. 
 

Paragraph above the heading News 
Releases 

This paragraph to be revised to be 
clearer and to include guidance on 
events arranged by other 
organisations to which the Council 
would sent representation. 
 

Additional paragraphs to follow the 
existing one above the heading News 
Releases 

An explanation be included of the 
position regarding outside 
appointments eg Fire Service awards, 
official events by partner 
organisations, Town and Parish 
Council notification of events in their 
area 
 

 
 

CAG/09/50   Notes of the last Meeting  
 
The notes of the previous meeting held on 15 February 2010 were approved as 
a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

Agenda Item 3
Page 6



DCW -  01.04.10 
Page 3  

 

 

 
CAG/09/51   Outside Bodies Policy  

 
The Advisory Group recalled that at its last meeting it had considered a draft 
policy for Outside Bodies and had endorsed the draft, subject to some 
amendments. The draft policy had now been approved by General Purposes 
Committee at its meeting on 10 February 2010. 
 
The Group requested a minor amendment to paragraphs 3-5 to delete the 
words “which receives funding from the Council” and the insertion of “where”. 
 
AGREED 
 
Subject to the amendment detailed above, to endorse the  Policy on Outside 
Bodies for inclusion in the Councillors’ Guide and circulation to Members. 

 
CAG/09/52   Review of Policy Framework  

 
The Advisory Group considered a report proposing an updated set of policies 
and strategies to comprise the Council’s Policy Framework. 
 
It was noted that legislation required the Council’s Constitution to set out a 
Policy Framework comprising those plans and strategies to be approved or 
adopted by Council. The inclusion of certain specified plans and strategies was 
mandatory, some were recommended for inclusion by the Secretary of State 
and others could be added at the Council’s discretion. 
 
Members were aware that the existing Budget and Policy Framework had been 
created by the Shadow Authority in 2008 and considered whether it was 
appropriate to review it now that Central Bedfordshire Council had been in 
place for a year. Comments were made that it was important that Members 
should have full involvement particularly while the Council was still a relatively 
new body. Members concurred that this proposal came a year too early. 
 
A suggestion was made that when the Advisory Group reviewed the Council’s 
policy framework it would be beneficial if those policy and strategy matters 
dealt with elsewhere, other than at Council, were specifically listed. It was 
noted that this list was currently being compiled. Members asked that 
consideration be given by the officers as to when the most appropriate time 
might be, having regard to the work which needed to be carried out. 
 
Members were advised that some of the policies or strategies could be 
amalgamated together, for example all the budget strategy matters could be in 
one place under paragraph 2.1 Part B2 and the reference to the Sustainability 
Suite could now be updated to be Climate Change Strategy reflecting current 
terminology.  Members welcomed this suggestion. 
 
Members indicated support for re-titling the appropriate sections in part B from 
“statutory” to “required” and “other” to “recommended/discretionary”. 
 
A comment was made that at the point of a policy or strategy being brought 
before Members, particularly when it related to external organisations, they 

Agenda Item 3
Page 7



DCW -  01.04.10 
Page 4  

 

 

were sometimes advised that there was no further opportunity for changes. A 
request was made that policies and strategies be brought before Members well 
enough in advance to enable changes to be made if required. 
 
A suggestion was made that a separate stand-alone Consultation Strategy was 
needed. It was noted that there were times that consultation was a legal 
requirement and that this would fall outside of any consultation strategy agreed 
by the Council.  
 
In response to a question it was noted that where consultation was a legal 
requirement this would be reported under the Legal Implications section of the 
reports template. A discussion ensued and Members commented that a 
specific section on Consultation should be included in the reports template to 
report on any consultation carried out with external bodies. 
 
Comments were made identifying policies and strategies which Members felt 
strongly should remain in the Policy Framework, and also about various other 
items currently within the Framework, as set out below. 
 
Policies /Strategies identified as those which should remain 

 
• Regional Spatial Strategies including the MKSM sub-regional 

strategy  
• Customer Service Strategy  
• Communication Strategy 
• Community Engagement Strategy  
• Local Area Agreement  

 
Policies/Strategies where other considerations applied 
 

• Older People’s Strategy – the Advisory Group noted that this was one of 
many social care and health items and indicated a willingness to 
consider that the Healthier Communities and Older People framework 
would in future provide the higher level strategic overview. 

 
• Cultural Strategy (including Leisure Strategy) – a comment was made 

that this should remain unchanged for the moment but in the future this 
could be replaced by a Leisure Strategy only. 

 
• Housing Investment Strategy – it was noted that there was no longer a 

requirement to produce a Housing Investment Strategy. 
 

The Advisory Group discussed paragraph 5 of the report which set out a 
paragraph included in the Constitution indicating the role of the overview and 
scrutiny committees in developing plans and strategies. A suggestion that the 
chairmen of the overview and scrutiny committees be invited to the next 
meeting of the Advisory Group to discuss this was welcomed.  A request was 
made that a short paper be brought to the meeting indicating that the 
development of policy should be carried out through team working between the 
overview and scrutiny committees, the Executive and senior officers. 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 8



DCW -  01.04.10 
Page 5  

 

 

AGREED TO RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL:- 
 
That the Policy Framework in Part B2 of the Constitution  be amended 
by:- 
 
(a) Inclusion of the budgetary plans listed in paragraph 1.1.3.2 under 

the Budget definition in paragraph 2.1, in order that all elements 
relating to the budget are listed in one place; 
 

(b) Deletion of “Housing Investment Strategy” in paragraph 1.1.3.6, 
given that authorities are no longer required to produce Housing 
Investment Strategies; 
 

(c) Amendment of “Sustainability Policy Suite” in paragraph 1.1.3.7 
to “Climate Change Strategy” to reflect the correct title for the 
Strategy; 
 

(d) Amendment of the headings of “Statutory” in paragraph 1.1.2 to 
“Required and “Other” in paragraph 1.1.3 to 
“Recommended/Discretionary” to reflect that the Government 
specifies certain plans and strategies which authorities are 
required to include in their Policy Frameworks, others which are 
recommended for inclusion and that the Council may also add 
plans at its discretion.  (The deletion of “statutory” will also 
avoid confusion with other “statutory” plans which the Council is 
required to produce but which are not required by the 
Government to be included in the Policy Framework). 
 

(Note: a revised version of the Policy Framework is attached at Appendix A.) 
 
AGREED 
 

1. that a report be brought back to the Constitution Advisory Group in 
approximately 6 months (18 October 2010 meeting) proposing which 
specific policies and strategies  should be included in the Policy 
Framework and additionally listing those which need not be included, 
with a detailed rationale to support the proposals; 

 
2. that policies and strategies be brought before Members for consideration 

at a timely point such that changes could be made if Members required 
any;  

 
3. that the Assistant Director Communications develop proposals for a 

stand-alone Consultation Strategy, possibly advised by an Overview and 
Scrutiny Task Group; 

 
4. that a specific section be included in the reports template headed 

“Consultation” where consultation with external organisations should be 
reported; 

 
5. that an item be placed on the agenda for the next meeting to consider 

the development of plans, strategies and budgets in the Budget and 

Agenda Item 3
Page 9



DCW -  01.04.10 
Page 6  

 

 

Policy Framework and that the Chairmen of the overview and scrutiny 
committees be invited to attend to participate in the discussion. 

 
CAG/09/53   Proposed Amendment to Public Speaking at Development Management 

Committee  
 
The Advisory Group considered a report of the Assistant Director, Development 
Management regarding a request by a Parish Council Chairman to increase the 
time limit for speakers at Development Management Committee. 
 
Councillor Shadbolt, Vice-Chairman of Development Management presented 
this item. 
 
Members noted that further to research carried out by the Leader of the 
Council, findings concluded that the current arrangements were in line with 
national best practice. It was also noted that consideration had been given to 
the request at a meeting of key players at meetings of Development 
Management Committee, including the relevant Portfolio Holder, the Vice-
Chairman of Development Management Committee and the Heads of 
Development Managements North and South, which had recommended that 
there be no change to the current arrangements. 
 
The Advisory Group noted that the Chairman of the Development Management 
Committee could use his discretion to vary the amount of time available to 
speakers. 
 
A debate ensued and a number of points were made. It was considered that it 
was appropriate for a Planning Officer to be present to advise. In view of this, 
the Advisory Group agreed to adjourn consideration of this matter to the next 
meeting and to ask a Planning Officer to attend. 
 
AGREED 
 
that the  Constitution remain unchanged in respect of the time limit for 
members of the public speaking at meetings of Development Management 
Committee pending further consideration of the matter at the next meeting  of 
the Advisory Group (1 June 2010) when a Planning Officer would be present. 

 
CAG/09/54   Variations to the Constitution  

 
The Advisory Group recalled that at its last meeting, the Monitoring Officer had 
been asked to make the amendments to the Constitution to reflect the new 
overview and scrutiny structure in consultation with the Group. 
 
The report set out the consequential amendments in relation to:- 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

• Part A1 – paragraph 3 
• Part D1 Overview and Scrutiny Arrangements and Terms of Reference 

 
The report also set out previously agreed amendments in relation to:- 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 10



DCW -  01.04.10 
Page 7  

 

 

Officer Employment 
• Part E2 – paragraph 8.1.1 (Terms of Reference of Appointments Sub-

Committee) 
• Part F4 – paragraph 5.1.4 (Protocol on Member/Officer Relations) 
• Part H3 – paragraph 3.2.1.3 (Scheme of Delegation…to Directors and 

other Officers) 
• Part H4 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules 

 
An additional proposal was made to provide for the introduction of Leader’s 
Announcements at Council meetings. 
 
It was also proposed that the amendments to the Constitution arising from the 
Senior Management Review would be the subject of consultation with 
Members by e-mail prior to the Monitoring Officer effecting the changes 
through exercising her delegated power from the Council. 
 
AGREED 
 

1. that the revisions made to the relevant parts of the Constitution in 
respect of the amended overview and scrutiny structure and changed 
procedure for officer appointments at Assistant Director level, as set out 
in the attachments to the submitted report, be endorsed; 

 
2. to note that the amendments to the Constitution consequential to the 

Senior Management Review would be the subject of consultation with 
Advisory Group members by e-mail prior to the Monitoring Officer 
effecting the changes through exercising the power delegated to her by 
Council. 

 
AGREED TO RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL 
 
To approve the variation to Part B5 of the Council Procedure Rules to 
provide for Leader’s Announcements and Communications to be an 
item at meetings of Council. 
 

CAG/09/55   Variations to the Scheme of Delegation to Officers  
 
The Advisory Group received a report advising of changes approved by the 
Leader of the Council to the Scheme of Delegation to Officers. 
 
Questions were asked as to the implications of the delegations. It was noted 
that in future the appropriate officer/s would be present to explain the 
implications of the delegations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 11



DCW -  01.04.10 
Page 8  

 

 

The Chairman requested that a letter  be sent in his name to the Chief 
Executive asking that appropriate officers attend future meetings of the 
Advisory Group to ensure full advise was available to Members. 
 
AGREED 
 

1. to note the delegations recently approved by the Leader of the Council, 
as detailed in the submitted report; 

 
2. that a letter from the Chairman of the Advisory Group be sent to the 

Chief Executive asking that where there is a proposed change to the 
Constitution,  the relevant officer be present to advise the Constitution 
Advisory Group. 

 
CAG/09/56   Publishing of the Constitution on the Website  

 
The Advisory Group had recently been advised that changes on the website 
had provided hyperlinks in the Constitution to assist with navigation within it. 
Members had taken the opportunity to look at the document on the website and 
also received a printed version at the meeting. 
 
Comments were made about the advantages of using a PDF editor which could 
enable bookmarking, making the document much more user-friendly. 
 
AGREED 
 
That further work be carried out by the officers to make the Constitution on the 
website more easily navigable. 

 
CAG/09/57   Work Programme  

 
The Advisory Group reviewed its Work Programme. 
 
It was noted that the following items had been added during the course of the 
meeting to the agenda for the next meeting: 
 

• Public participation for local council representatives at meetings of 
Development Management Committee (June) 

• Consultation Strategy (June) 
• Review of items for the Policy Framework (October) 

 
Members were advised that the new statutory provisions for petitions would 
come into effect on 15 June before  the Council meeting on 24 June 2010.  The 
provisions relating to e-petitions would not be introduced until 15 December 
2010. Consideration was given as to the most pragmatic approach to reviewing 
the adjustments needed to the current scheme in respect of the new statutory 
requirements. A discussion ensued, suggesting that the proposals for revising 
the petitions procedure should come to the Advisory Group’s meeting on 1 
June and that recommendations on proposed amendments would then be 
submitted to Council on 24 June 2010. 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 12



DCW -  01.04.10 
Page 9  

 

 

A comment was made that the Constitution did not appear to provide  a 
satisfactory officer delegation in respect of savings/expenditure in relation to 
leases. It was noted that the Leader could use her delegated power to make 
the necessary amendment to the scheme of officer delegations.  
 
AGREED 
 

1. to add  items to the Work Programme, as detailed above; 
 
2. that the arrangements for dealing with petitions be brought to the 

meeting of the Advisory Group on 1 June 2010; 
 
3.  that the officers bring to the attention of the Leader the need for an 

additional officer delegation in relation to leases, and make the 
appropriate arrangements. 

 
 

CAG/09/58   Dates of future meetings  
 
The Advisory Group considered dates for future meetings further to a canvass 
of availability having been carried out. 
 
AGREED  
 
That future meetings of the Constitution Advisory Group be held on the 
following dates:- 
 

• Tuesday 1 June 2010 2.00pm 
 
• Thursday 29 July 2010 2.00pm 

 
• Monday 18 October 2010 2.00pm 

 
• Thursday 2 December 2010 2.00pm (Note: After the meeting this was 

changed to 1.00pm) 
 

• Monday 21 March 2011 2.00pm. 
 
 (Note: The meeting commenced at 10.00 a.m. and concluded at 12.45 

p.m.) 
 
 

 
Chairman……………………………………………….. 

 
 
 

Date……………………………………………………. 
 

 

Agenda Item 3
Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Children’s Trusts

Statutory guidance on  
co-operation arrangements,  
including the Children’s Trust  
Board and the Children and  

Young People’s Plan

Agenda Item 4
Page 15



Contents

Agenda Item 4
Page 16



Introduction

 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 17



Agenda Item 4
Page 18



 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 19



Agenda Item 4
Page 20



Part One: What is a Children’s 
Trust and what does it do?

Agenda Item 4
Page 21



1  The Children’s Trust 
co-operation arrangements

Agenda Item 4
Page 22



C
h
ild
re

n a
nd Y

oung People’s PlanIn
te

gra
ted Processes 

In
te
gr

ate
d Front-Line Delivery

 
 
 

 

Ch
ildr

en’s Trust Board

Better
outcomes for

children and young
people, parents, 

families and
community

Agenda Item 4
Page 23



 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 24



 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 25



Agenda Item 4
Page 26



Agenda Item 4
Page 27



 �

 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 28



 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 29



Agenda Item 4
Page 30



Agenda Item 4
Page 31



Part two: Who are the Children’s 
Trust partners?

Agenda Item 4
Page 32



2  The Children’s Trust partners

 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 33



Agenda Item 4
Page 34



Agenda Item 4
Page 35



 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 36



 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 37



Agenda Item 4
Page 38



Agenda Item 4
Page 39



Agenda Item 4
Page 40



Agenda Item 4
Page 41



Agenda Item 4
Page 42



Agenda Item 4
Page 43



Agenda Item 4
Page 44



Agenda Item 4
Page 45



Agenda Item 4
Page 46



Agenda Item 4
Page 47



Agenda Item 4
Page 48



Agenda Item 4
Page 49



Agenda Item 4
Page 50



Agenda Item 4
Page 51



Part three: How does the 
Children’s Trust improve 
children’s lives?

Agenda Item 4
Page 52



3 Integrated processes and tools

 �

 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 53



 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 54



Agenda Item 4
Page 55



 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 56



 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 57



 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 58



 �

 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 59



 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 60



Agenda Item 4
Page 61



4 The Children’s Trust Board

Agenda Item 4
Page 62



Agenda Item 4
Page 63



Agenda Item 4
Page 64



 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 65



 �

 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 66



 �

 �

 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 67



 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 68



 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 69



Agenda Item 4
Page 70



5  Children and Young People’s 
Plan (CYPP)

Agenda Item 4
Page 71



Sustainable Community Strategy 

 

Effective Children’s Trust Board leadership, governance and
accountability and joint working to drive local CYP priorities  

Commissioning arrangements  that build on the strengths
of NHS, education and third sector commissioning and linking

them to joint arrangements through the CYPP 

Service delivery  through a workforce with the right skills and
capacity, focused on prevention and early intervention

to improve outcomes  

Inspection
and

 assurance
systems to
help drive

 improvements
in quality

and
outcomes 

 

Needs
assessment
using data

in JSNA and
engagement of
children, young

people and
families to

inform CYPP
and the design,

commissioning and
delivery of 

services  

 

 
Children and Young

People’s Plan linking to 
partner plans and driving 

down to aligned operational 
plans developed within the 

Children’s Trust partnership  

JSNA aligned 
with SCS and 
feeding into 
CYPP needs 
assessment 

Local Strategic Partnership 

Agenda Item 4
Page 72



Agenda Item 4
Page 73



Agenda Item 4
Page 74



Agenda Item 4
Page 75



Agenda Item 4
Page 76



 �

 �

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 77



Agenda Item 4
Page 78



Agenda Item 4
Page 79



Agenda Item 4
Page 80



Agenda Item 4
Page 81



Agenda Item 4
Page 82



Agenda Item 4
Page 83



EA
CH

 P
LA

N
 M

U
ST

 IN
CL

U
D

E:

A
n 

ou
tli

ne
 o

f t
he

 k
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 a
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
pl

an
ne

d 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

ou
tc

om
es

, i
n 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 s

pe
ci

al
 e

du
ca

ti
on

al
 n

ee
ds

, d
is

ab
le

d 
or

 lo
ok

ed
 a

ft
er

 b
y 

a 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y

EA
CH

 P
LA

N
 M

U
ST

 S
ET

 O
U

T 
A

RR
A

N
G

EM
EN

TS
 M

A
D

E 
BY

 B
O

A
RD

 
PA

RT
N

ER
S 

FO
R 

CO
-O

PE
RA

TI
N

G
 O

N
:

a)
 a

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 p

rio
rit

ie
s

b)
  

ea
rl

y 
in

te
rv

en
ti

on
 a

nd
 p

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e 

ac
tio

n

c)
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 a
nd

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

w
el

fa
re

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le

d)
 c

o-
or

di
na

tin
g 

ch
ild

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
ad

ul
t s

er
vi

ce
s

e)
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

an
d 

m
iti

ga
tin

g 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 c
hi

ld
 p

ov
er

ty

f) 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

be
ha

vi
ou

r o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

rs
on

s 
an

d 
at

te
nd

an
ce

 o
f p

up
ils

 a
t s

ch
oo

l

g)
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 e
du

ca
tio

n,
 e

ar
ly

 y
ea

rs
, L

A
A

 a
nd

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
ta

rg
et

s 
(w

he
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e)

a)
 A

ny
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Tr

us
t p

ar
tn

er
s 

w
ho

 
ar

e 
no

t r
ep

re
se

nt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

Bo
ar

d
b)

 C
hi

ld
re

n,
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e,

 fa
m

ili
es

 
an

d 
ca

re
rs

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
c)

 
Bo

di
es

 re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
d)

 L
SC

B
e)

 S
ur

e 
St

ar
t C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Ce

nt
re

 a
dv

is
or

y 
bo

ar
ds

f) 
Th

ird
 s

ec
to

r b
od

ie
s 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
g)

 D
io

ce
sa

n 
au

th
or

iti
es

h)
 F

ai
th

 g
ro

up
s 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
i) 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t s

ch
oo

ls
j) 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

fo
ru

m
k)

 A
dm

is
si

on
 fo

ru
m

l) 
In

de
pe

nd
en

t s
pe

ci
al

is
t c

ol
le

ge
s

m
) L

oc
al

 c
om

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

s 
as

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

n)
 P

ro
vi

de
rs

 o
f s

oc
ia

l h
ou

si
ng

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
o)

 O
th

er
 re

le
va

nt
 L

SP
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

as
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te

Th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
an

d 
th

e 
PC

T 
m

us
t p

ub
lis

h 
th

e 
Pl

an
 

on
 th

ei
r w

eb
si

te
s 

(o
th

er
 

Bo
ar

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

o 
as

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

), 
de

po
si

t 
su

ffi
ci

en
t c

op
ie

s 
in

 lo
ca

l 
lib

ra
rie

s 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 
pr

od
uc

e 
a 

ch
ild

 
fr

ie
nd

ly
 v

er
si

on
 o

f 
th

e 
Pl

an
.

Ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

Pl
an

 li
nk

s 
to

 B
oa

rd
 

pa
rt

ne
r d

el
iv

er
y 

pl
an

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
ge

ne
ra

ti
on

 a
nd

 
ec

on
om

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

la
ns

) a
nd

 s
et

s 
ou

t t
he

 k
ey

 
ac

ti
on

s 
of

 B
oa

rd
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ou

tc
om

es
.

Pa
rt

ne
rs

 o
n 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 ta

ke
 a

ct
io

n 
as

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

e 
pl

an
.

Th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
m

us
t r

ev
ie

w
 

th
e 

CY
PP

 e
ve

ry
 y

ea
r, 

pu
bl

is
h 

its
 re

vi
ew

, a
nd

 
re

vi
se

 th
e 

Pl
an

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
.

Th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
m

us
t 

m
on

ito
r t

he
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

Pl
an

.

CYPP prepared by the Children’s Trust Board partners within the 
overall vision for the area contained in the Sustainable Community 
Strategy and as part of the wider strategic planning overseen by the 
Local Strategic Partnership

NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Children’s Trust Board partners must carry out a needs assessment, 
to identify unmet need and inform strategic commissioning priorities 

– the needs assessment should be informed by the JSNA

Pr
ep

ar
in

g
Co

ns
ul

ta
ti

on
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e

Pu
bl

is
hi

ng

D
el

iv
er

in
g

A
nn

ua
l r

ev
ie

w
M

on
it

or
in

g

Children’s Trust Board partners must consult widely within the 
establishing authority’s area

Es
se
nt
ia
l r
eq

ui
re
m
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 C
YP

P

Agenda Item 4
Page 84



6 Transitional Arrangements

Agenda Item 4
Page 85



Agenda Item 4
Page 86



Agenda Item 4
Page 87



Annexes

Agenda Item 4
Page 88



Annex A: Improving Outcomes 
and Reducing Child Poverty

Agenda Item 4
Page 89



Agenda Item 4
Page 90



Agenda Item 4
Page 91



Agenda Item 4
Page 92



Agenda Item 4
Page 93



Agenda Item 4
Page 94



Agenda Item 4
Page 95



Annex B: The United Nations 
Convention on the Rights of 
the Child

These Articles of the UNCRC are relevant to all five ECM outcomes

Article 1
The UNCRC applies to everyone under the age
of 18.

Article 2
The UNCRC applies to every child, whatever
their nation, race, colour, sex, religion, abilities,
opinion, wealth or social position.

Article 3
In all actions concerning children the best
interests of the child shall be a primary
consideration.

Article 4
Governments shall take all neccessary steps
in legislation and through the implementation
of policy to make these rights available to
all children.

Article 5 and Article 18
Governments shall respect the rights and
responsibilities of parents and support parents
to bring up children.

Article 6
All children have the right to life. Governments
should ensure that children survive and
   develop healthily.

Article 12
Governments must ensure that children have
the right to express freely their views and take
account of children’s views. Children have the
right to be heard in all matters that affect them.

Article 22
Refugee and asylum-seeking children have the
right to protection and assistance and the same
rights as all other children.

Being healthy
Enjoying good
physical and 

mental health 
and living a 

healthy lifestyle 

Staying safe 
Being protected 
from harm and

neglect; safe from
bullying and anti-
social behaviour 

Enjoying and
achieving 

Fulfilling their
potential and

developing broad
skills for adulthood

Making a positive
contribution 

Supporting the
community and

environment and
engaging in law-
abiding behaviour

Economic 
well-being 

Living in households
free from low

income and not
being disadvantaged

by poverty

Agenda Item 4
Page 96



Being healthy
Enjoying good
physical and 

mental health 
and living a 

healthy lifestyle 

Staying safe 
Being protected 
from harm and

neglect; safe from
bullying and anti-
social behaviour 

Enjoying and
achieving 

Fulfilling their
potential and

developing broad
skills for adulthood

Making a positive
contribution 

Supporting the
community and

environment and
engaging in law-
abiding behaviour

Economic 
well-being 

Living in households
free from low

income and not
being disadvantaged

by poverty

Article 6
All children have the
right to life.
Governments should
ensure that children
survive and    develop
healthily.

Article 23
Special care and
support for children
with disabilities and
special educational
needs to lead a full
and independent life

Article 24
Right to good quality
health care, nutritious
food, a clean and 
safe environment 
and information to
help maintain a
healthy lifestyle

Article 31
Right to rest, play
and enjoy art and
culture

Article 33
Protection from
harmful drugs

Article 39
Governments to help
restore a child’s
health, self-respect
and dignity after
abuse or neglect

Article 9
Right to family life
unless the child is
abused or neglected

Article 10
Right of families to
be together

Article 13
Right to speak freely
and receive and share
information so long
as it is within the law

Article 19
Government
protection of children
from violence,
including from abuse
or neglect by parents

Article 20
Governments to
provide proper care
and protection for
children who cannot
be looked after by
their own family

Article 21
Adoption of children
according to what is
best for a child

Article 25
Children in care,
protection or under
treatment to be
reviewed regularly

Article 32
Protection from work
that is dangerous or
detrimental to health
or education

Article 34
Protection from
sexual abuse

Article 35
Governments to
prevent the
abduction, sale or
trafficking of children

Article 36
Protection from
activities that harm
children’s well-being

Article 39
Help to restore
health, self-respect
and dignity after
abuse or neglect

Article 14
Right to freedom of
thought and religion,
government respect
for parental guidance

Article 23
Special care and
support for children
with disabilities and
special educational
needs to lead a full
and independent life

Article 28
Right to education

Article 29
Education should
develop each child’s
personality, talents
and abilities to their
fullest potential, as
well as develop
respect for parents,
other members of
society, and the
environment

Article 30
Right to enjoy own
culture and practice
own religion

Article 31
Right to rest, play and
enjoy art and culture

Article 12
Right to express
views, to be heard
and to be listened to

Article 13
Right to speak freely
and receive and
share information so
long as it is within
the law

Article 15
Right to meet with
other children and 
to join groups and
organisations, as
long as this is done
peacefully

Article 30
Right to enjoy own
culture and practice
own religion

Article 31
Right to rest, play and
enjoy art and culture

Article 37
Detention of young
people to be a last
resort; and children
not to be imprisoned
with adults

Article 40
Children accused
  or guilty of breaking 
the law must be
treated with dignity
and respect

Article 18
Governments should
support parents with
their responsibility to
bring up children,
including through the
provision of services

Article 24
Right to good quality
health care, nutritious
food, a clean and
safe environment
and information to
help maintain a
healthy lifestyle

Article 26
Right to social
benefit; providing
extra support for
families in need

Article 27
Right to a standard of
living that meets
needs of children’s
physical, mental and
social development

Agenda Item 4
Page 97



Annex C: Legislative Basis

Agenda Item 4
Page 98



Agenda Item 4
Page 99



Agenda Item 4
Page 100



Agenda Item 4
Page 101



Agenda Item 4
Page 102



Agenda Item 4
Page 103



Annex D: New Children and 
Young People’s Plan regulations

Agenda Item 4
Page 104



Agenda Item 4
Page 105



Agenda Item 4
Page 106



Agenda Item 4
Page 107



Agenda Item 4
Page 108



Agenda Item 4
Page 109



Agenda Item 4
Page 110



Annex E: Useful Links

Agenda Item 4
Page 111



Agenda Item 4
Page 112



Agenda Item 4
Page 113



Agenda Item 4
Page 114



Agenda Item 4
Page 115



Annex F: CYPP checklist

 �

 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 116



 �

Agenda Item 4
Page 117



Agenda Item 4
Page 118



Agenda Item 4
Page 119



Agenda Item 4
Page 120



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 

  
 
 
CONSTITUTION ADVISORY GROUP 

 
DATE:  1 June 2010 
 
 
TITLE Review of consultation and negotiation arrangements with 

Professional Associations (JCNC) 

REPORT OF Director of Customer and Shared Services  

 

PURPOSE 
To propose an amendment to the Constitution to remove the Joint 
Consultative and Negotiating Committee for Primary and Secondary 
Education as a sub committee of the General Purposes Committee. 

 

ORIGIN OF 
PROPOSAL 

This proposal has come from discussions held between the Portfolio 
holder for Children’s Services, the Chairman of the Constitution 
Advisory Group and the Director of Children’s Services.  

 
RECOMMENDATION: That subject to endorsement by the General 

Purposes Committee, the Council be recommended 
to amend Sections E2 (7.1.5) and E2 (10) and remove 
the Joint Consultative and Negotiating Committee 
for Primary and Secondary Education (JCNC) as a 
subsidiary body of the General Purposes 
Committee. 
 

 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

Agenda Item 5
Page 121



 

 

Background 
The current consultation and negotiation framework with the professional 
associations for schools based employees within Central Bedfordshire has been in 
operation since 1 April 2009 and is based on the former County Council framework. 
 
It is noted that in the original terms of reference for the JCNC there would be a 
review after 12 months, when there would be a better understanding by Members, 
officers and professional associations of the effectiveness and appropriateness of 
the sub committee. 
 
In addition to the formal JCNC there are a number of working parties that meet each 
term: 
 

• JCC (Joint Consultative Committee) Working Party 
• JNC (Joint Negotiating Committee) Working Party 
• WAMG (Workforce Agreement Monitoring Group) 
• Soulbury Working Party  
• EJC Health & Safety Committee 

 
In recent months discussions have been held to review the existing consultation and 
negotiation framework for schools, (formal JCNC and working parties) with a view to 
streamlining them and making them more efficient and effective. 
 
Business case for the proposed change to JCNC 
There is a need to reflect the changing environment: 
 

• To broaden the current framework to reflect the wider children’s workforce 
and the Team around the Child and Family agenda. 

 
• To recognise and acknowledge that terms and conditions of the children’s 

workforce (especially schools based employees) is largely nationally 
negotiated. 

 
• Following the creation of Central Bedfordshire and also the Senior 

Management Review there is a reduction of officer capacity to be able to 
attend the number of meetings currently held. 

 
• To ensure that the issues raised by the professional associations and trade 

unions are considered and dealt with at the appropriate level within the 
consulting and negotiating framework. 

 
• To ensure that GMB and Unison who represent the views of non teaching 

employees in schools and other employees within the wider children’s 
workforce are included in all decisions that affect their members. 

 

Agenda Item 5
Page 122



 

 

• Discussion of key strategic matters are held at Executive, Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and Council and between the Director of Children’s 
Services and Head Teachers and Governors through the Schools Forum.  We 
need to ensure that following appropriate decision making, these matters are 
not by default subject to further review and consideration through JCNC 
arrangements.   

 
Proposal 
It is recognised that there is a need to provide an interface between Members and 
the professional associations and trade unions and it is proposed that JCNC is 
replaced by a Joint Consultative and Negotiating Forum involving the Portfolio 
Holder for Children’s Services, and representatives of relevant trade unions and 
Professional Associations. 
 
Details of the framework including the working parties and a brief summary of their 
terms of reference are set out on the attached Appendix A.  These details have been 
discussed by the Director of Children’s Services with all the professional 
associations and trade unions and they are fully supportive of the proposed changes. 
 
Any matters that remain unresolved by the Joint Consultative and Negotiating Forum 
will be referred to the General Purposes Committee to resolve/determine. 
 
Employee Partnership Committee 
The terms of reference for this Committee will also be reviewed in the forthcoming 
months and it is likely that a proposal similar to the one outlined in this report will 
come for consideration to a later meeting of the Constitutional Advisory Group 
following further discussions between Members, officers and trade unions.   
 
 
 
 
Contact Officer Details:  Key Background Papers: 

Gordon McFarlane – Acting 
Assistant Director (HR/OD) 
01234 276679 

 None 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5
Page 123



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

Central Bedfordshire Council – Meeting Framework with Teacher and Children’s Services Trade Unions May 2010 

Consultation Forum Membership Frequency Brief Terms of Reference  

Joint Consultative & 
Negotiating Forum 

 

(this would not be a sub-
cttee of General 
Purposes, so would 
need to seek delegation 
to Director in 
consultation with the P/F 
Holder) 

Portfolio Holder for Children’s 
Services (Chair) 

Director of Children’s Services 

Teaching unions, UNISON & 
GMB  

One HR representative 

Termly ( 3 per 
year)  

• Interface with Director and Portfolio Holder to discuss major policy and/or 
key strategic issues affecting schools and children’s services that could 
not be resolved at the working party. 

• To discuss any major policy issues that either the Portfolio Holder, 
Director and unions wish to raise further to their discussion at the 
working party. 

• To consider any disputes between the Council and the Trade Unions 
where there has been failure to agree at JCNC working party level.  

 

Joint Consultative & 
Negotiating Working 
Party 

 

 

 

 

Head of Partnership and 
Workforce (Chair) representing 
Children’s Services  

HRBP (Children’s Services),  

  

Teacher trade unions, UNISON & 
GMB 

Termly ( 3 per 
year).  
*Commencing in 
September 2010 

** provision 
exists for further 
meetings to be 
arranged if 
required. 

 

• Implementation of national terms and conditions of employment. (HR) 

• Policy Development work relating to schools and the wider children’s 
workforce (HR) 

• Consultation/Negotiation of local policies/procedures and working 
practices (Chair/HR) 

• To inform, communicate and consult on employment and organisational 
issues that are relevant to schools and the wider children’s workforce, 
ensuring that the involvement of staff is achieved. (Chair/HR)  

• To promote good employee relations and a positive working environment 
by recognising common interests and building a culture of working 
together to achieve solutions. (Chair/HR) 

Workforce Agreement 
Monitoring Group 
(WAMG) 

Head of Partnership & Workforce 
Development (Chair) 

HR as required 

Teacher Trade Unions, UNISON 
& GMB 

Termly ( 3 per 
year) 

*To be timed to 
happen prior to 
the JCNC 
working party on 

• To raise and monitor standards and tackle workload and to provide 
benefits of the National Agreement and whole School Workforce reform 
across all phases. 

 

 

A
genda Item

 5
P

age 125



Appendix A 

 same day. 

Soulbury Working Party Schools Relationship Manager 
(BBC) or HRBP Children’s 
Services (CBC)* (Chair) 

Representative from Children’s 
Services, ASPECT, AEP, & NUT 
trade union reps 

* joint meeting with Bedford 
Borough Council 

As required – ad 
hoc 

• To discuss the local implementation of any national terms and conditions 
affecting Soulbury employees and any other related issues. 

EJC (Health & Safety) 

Schools Based Staff 

Chair – Head of School Support 

 

H&S team, HR (as required), 
Teacher trade unions, UNISON & 
GMB 

Termly ( 3 per 
year) 

• Consider all health and safety matters affecting staff, members of the 
public, pupils, contractors, other Authority employees and any other 
persons who may be affected by work activities including: 

o Discussing monitoring procedures and the results of monitoring. 

o Monitoring the effectiveness of the training of employees in safety 
matters and the adequacy of safety and health communication in 
the workplace. 

o Reviewing statistics on accidents, dangerous occurrences, ‘near 
misses’ and cases of work related ill health. 

o Making recommendations regarding immediate action on matters 
of emergency affecting the health and safety of employees. 

o Recommending standards, where appropriate, on health and 
safety laws and regulations. 

o Making formal recommendations on all matters affecting the 
health and safety of employees to the Director of Children’s 
Services. 

 

A
genda Item

 5
P

age 126



Appendix A 

 

A
genda Item

 5
P

age 127



P
age 128

T
his page is intentionally left blank



26/05/10 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Central 
Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 

  

 
 
CONSTITUTION ADVISORY GROUP 

 
DATE:  1st June 2010 
 
 
TITLE Consultation Strategy 

REPORT OF Assistant Director of Communications / Consultation Manager 
 

 

PURPOSE 
To outline the current Council Strategies/ Polices which cover 
consultation requirements. 
 

 

ORIGIN OF 
PROPOSAL 

The Council’s Constitution Advisory Group have been considering 
the Council’s Policy Framework.  At the meeting on 1st April 2010 the 
Constitution Advisory Group requested information about the 
Council’s strategic approach to consultation. 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
(1) Consider the aspects of consultation which are already covered in the 

Council’s  
§ Communication Strategy 
§ Community Engagement Strategy and  
§ Consultation Toolkit (to be developed in 2010) 

And consider what, if any, further issues need to be addressed. 
 

(2) Consider if the Constitution Advisory Group wish to recommend to the 
Executive to consider having a separate strategy as per the Policy 
Framework list.  
 

Agenda Item 6
Page 129



26/05/10 

 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
1. The Council’s approach to Consultation is detailed in two existing Council 

Strategies; Communications Strategy and Community Engagement Strategy.   
 

2. The following aspects are covered in the Communication Strategy: 
• Corporate Consultation Team’s role in providing training, advice and 

support to services in conducting consultation and  
• A forward plan of the corporate consultation and market research 

activity that will be carried out by the Consultation Team. 
 

3. The corporate consultation work for the year ahead includes: 
• Maintaining the Council’s consultation database 
• Establish a framework contract with research suppliers to ensure best 

value for money 
• Six monthly reputation tracker surveys 
• Bi-annual Place Survey (2010) 
• Annual budget consultation 
• Set up stakeholder database 
• Set up social media engagement tools 
• Run quarterly online polls  
• Member survey 
• Stakeholder survey 
• Internal satisfaction survey 
• Refresh employee engagement survey (2011) 

The team will also support services in their consultation activities. 
 

4. The following aspects of consultation are covered in the Community 
Engagement Strategy: 

• The Council’s response to the Duty to Involve, including various 
mechanisms for the public to influence our decision making, officer and 
member guidance and training, coordination of consultation and 
engagement activities. 

• A set of agreed values for consultation and engagement activities to 
ensure a consistent approach, all engagement and consultation should 
be planned, timely, transparent, inclusive, proportionate, resourced, 
evaluated and published.  

• How Members will be supported in their role as community leaders. 
• How we will coordinate our engagement and consultation work with key 

partners. 
• How we will measure success through national indicators. 
 

Agenda Item 6
Page 130



26/05/10 

 

5. In 2010 the Consultation Team is developing a consultation toolkit.  The toolkit 
will be a guidance document for officers in designing, managing and analysing 
consultation.  The toolkit will cover: 

• The Council’s statutory requirements around consultation  
• When to consult  
• Who to consult (including the role of members) 
• How to consult (including the 12 week consultation period guidance) 
• Choosing and designing consultation methods  
• Evaluating consultation 

 
The toolkit can also be used by Members to assist them in evaluating 
consultation results. 
 

 

 
Contact Officer Details:  Key Background Papers: 

Georgina Stanton, Assistant 
Director Communications, 01462 
611438 and Karen Aspinall, 
Consultation Manager, T. 0300 
300 6286 

  

 

Agenda Item 6
Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



27/05/10 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Central 
Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 

  

 
 
CONSTITUTION ADVISORY GROUP 

 
DATE:  1 June 2010 
 
 
TITLE Proposed amendment to public speaking at Development 

Management Committee 
REPORT 
OF Gary Worth AD Development Management 

 

PURPOSE 
To consider allowing speakers 5 minutes rather than 3 minutes as 
currently allowed by the Constitution of Central Bedfordshire (Part 
A4, Annex 3, 3.1 – 3.4). 

 
ORIGIN OF 
PROPOSAL 

This matter was originally discussed by the Constitution Advisory 
Group on 1 April 2010 and was deferred (see attached report). 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
As set out in the original report to the Advisory Group on 1 April 2010, a copy 
of which is appended. 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
1. At the meeting of the Constitution Advisory Group held on 1 April 2010, 

Members requested that consideration of the report regarding public speaking 
at the Development Management Committee should be deferred  in order that 
the appropriate Planning officer could be present at the meeting to provide 
advice on the report. 
 

2. The original report is appended for Members’ consideration. 
 

 

Agenda Item 7
Page 133



27/05/10 

 

Contact Officer Details:  Key Background Papers: 

Gary Worth  Report to CAG 1 April 
  Town and Parish report 
 

Agenda Item 7
Page 134



27/05/10 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Central 
Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 

  

 
 
CONSTITUTION ADVISORY GROUP 

 
DATE:  1st April 2010 
 
 
TITLE Proposed amendment to public speaking at Development 

Management Committee 

REPORT OF Gary Worth AD Development Management 

 

PURPOSE 
To consider allowing speakers 5 minutes rather than 3 minutes as 
currently allowed by the Constitution of Central Bedfordshire (Part 
A4, Annex 3, 3.1 -3.4) 

 

ORIGIN OF 
PROPOSAL 

Following the Town and Parish event of 4th November 2009, Cllr 
Shadbolt discussed this issue with Peter Brown of Stondon Parish 
Council after Mr Brown had raised the issue during Open Forum 
Questions at the event. Cllr Shadbolt undertook to investigate the 
matter further with a view to bringing forward an item to the CWG. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
  
(1) That the Constitution of Central Bedfordshire Council remains 

unaltered in respect of public speaking at Development Management 
Committee to allow 3 minutes to speakers. 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

Agenda Item 7
Page 135



27/05/10 

 

1. Following the question from Peter Brown at the Central Bedfordshire Council 
Town and Parish event on 4th November 2009, Cllr Trisha Turner undertook to 
carry out research of national best practice and to include the findings in the 
report of the Town and Parish event. This work was carried out and the 
findings concluded that Central Bedfordshire Council current arrangements 
were in keeping with national best practice and therefore no changes should 
be proposed. The findings were included with the responses to the open forum 
questions in the Town and Parish Event Post Conference Report (A copy is 
attached, please see page 9). It should be noted that the Chair of the 
Committee has discretion to allow longer for speaking by virtue of Part A4, 
Annex 3, 4.           
                                                                                                                     

2. A meeting was held on 1st March 2010. In attendance were Cllr Tom Nicols 
PFH Sustainable Development, Cllr Alan Shadbolt  Vice Chair of DMC, Gary 
Worth AD Development Management, Andrew Davie, Head of Development 
Management North and David Hale, Head of Development Management 
South. Cllr Peter Vickers, Chair of DMC was invited but did not attend. The 
issue was discussed at this meeting and it was agreed by all present, given the 
research carried out and the reported findings, that no change to the 
Constitution was required.                                                                                                                             

 

 
Contact Officer Details:  Key Background Papers: 

Gary Worth  Town and Parish report 
 

Agenda Item 7
Page 136



Town & Parish 
Council Conference

Agenda Item 7
Page 137



Contents Page

Agenda Item 7
Page 138



Introduction

Agenda Item 7
Page 139



Economic briefing for the public sector

Agenda Item 7
Page 140



The Conference

Agenda Item 7
Page 141



Community Engagement Strategy

Agenda Item 7
Page 142



Sustainable Community Strategy

Agenda Item 7
Page 143



Open Forum

Agenda Item 7
Page 144



Agenda Item 7
Page 145



Agenda Item 7
Page 146



Agenda Item 7
Page 147



Agenda Item 7
Page 148



Agenda Item 7
Page 149



Feedback on the Conference

Agenda Item 7
Page 150



Agenda Item 7
Page 151



Agenda Item 7
Page 152



Conclusion

Agenda Item 7
Page 153



Appendix 1 - 

Agenda Item 7
Page 154



Agenda Item 7
Page 155



Agenda Item 7
Page 156



Agenda Item 7
Page 157



Agenda Item 7
Page 158



Appendix 2 - 

Agenda Item 7
Page 159



Agenda Item 7
Page 160



Agenda Item 7
Page 161



Agenda Item 7
Page 162



Agenda Item 7
Page 163



Agenda Item 7
Page 164



Agenda Item 7
Page 165



Agenda Item 7
Page 166



Agenda Item 7
Page 167



Serving our communities

Central
Bedfordshire
in contact

Find out more…

More 
information

Don’t forget!

Agenda Item 7
Page 168



27/05/10 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Central 
Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 

  

 
 
CONSTITUTION ADVISORY GROUP 

 
DATE:  1st June 2010 
 
 
TITLE Call-in of planning applications by Members to Development 

Management Committee 

REPORT OF Andrew Davie Head of Development Management (North) 

 

PURPOSE 
To amend 4.3.95.1 of the Constitution to require planning reasons to 
be given to justify the referral of planning applications to 
Development Management Committee. 

 

ORIGIN OF 
PROPOSAL 

Following a meeting of Cllr Shadbolt and Cllr Nicols and officers it 
was agreed to propose that the Constitution be amended to give 
greater clarity for the reasons behind referral of planning applications 
to Development Management Committee. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
(1) That 4.3.95.1 of the Central Bedfordshire Constitution is amended to 

include planning reasons in support of requests for Development 
Management Committee to consider a planning application. 
 
 

  
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 169



27/05/10 

 

 Suggested revision: 
 
A ward member of the Council requests in writing, on an agreed pro-
forma and supported by planning reasons, within 3 weeks of the 
application being registered, for it to be referred to a meeting of the 
Development Management Committee.  The Member making a call-in is 
required to speak about the reasons for the call-in at the Committee 
where the application may be considered1.. 
 
1 A Member may withdraw a request by notifying the Assistant Director 
Development Management no later than six clear working days before 
the date of the Committee meeting. 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
1. At a meeting on 1st March 2010 attended by Cllr Shadbolt, Cllr Nicols, 

Assistant Director of Development Management and Heads of Service it was 
agreed to propose an amendment to the Central Bedfordshire Constitution to 
require Ward Member requests for planning applications to be considered by 
Development Management Committee to be supported by planning reasons. 
 

2. It was considered that it is good practice for the planning concerns that are 
applicable to each application be set out at the time a referral request is made 
and has two clear benefits.  Firstly, it provides transparency to applicants and 
the public for the reasons why a specific application is to be considered by the 
Committee.  Secondly, it provides the Members of the Committee with a clear 
steer from the Ward Member as to the planning issues which are relevant to 
the consideration of the application.  It is important that planning reasons are 
provided to ensure that the Committee are considering applications where 
genuine planning issues are present for consideration.  The Committee cannot 
attribute weight to non planning considerations and the consideration of these 
applications places an unnecessary burden on a busy and lengthy Committee 
that already has a high workload. 
 

3. It is common practice for planning reasons to be given and acceptance of this 
amendment would not put Central  Bedfordshire out of line with common 
practice in adjoining authorities. 
 

 

 
Contact Officer Details:  Key Background Papers: 

Andrew Davie   
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 170



27/05/10                                                               1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Central 
Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 

  

 
 
CONSTITUTION ADVISORY GROUP 

 
DATE:  1 June 2010  
 
 

  TITLE Petitions Scheme 
  

REPORT OF Head of Democratic Services   

 

PURPOSE 
To recommend to Council the approval of a Petitions Scheme and 
amendment of the Constitution in order to comply with the Local 
Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 

 

ORIGIN OF 
PROPOSAL 

To meet the legislative requirements under the Local Democracy, 
Economic Development and Construction Act 2009, The Local 
Authorities (Petitions) (England) Order 2010 and Statutory Guidance 
on the Duty to Respond to Petitions. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
1. That the Group review the threshold for:- 

 
 (i) General petitions received under the scheme;  

 
 (ii) Petitions which must be debated at a full Council meeting; and 

 
 (iii) E-petitions. 

 
2. That the Group:- 

 

Agenda Item 9
Page 171



27/05/10                                                               2 
 

 (i) note the provision for petitions to trigger a requirement for a 
senior member of Council staff to attend a meeting of the 
Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 
  

 (ii) consider whether the threshold to trigger such a requirement  in 
the draft scheme at Appendix B (1200) is appropriate; and 
 

 (iii) recommend the Council that the Chief Executive and Directors, 
should be specified as the Senior Officers who shall be subject 
to the requirement to give evidence at a meeting of the relevant 
overview and scrutiny committee in response to a petition. 
 

3. That the Group note the proposals relating to e-petitions as set out in 
paragraphs 3.13 – 3.14 and recommend the Council to introduce the e-
petitions facility, subject to satisfactory testing, with effect from 1 
October  2010. 
 

4. That the Group considers the issues identified during operation of the 
current petitions scheme and specifically:- 
 

 (i) considers whether to specify a consistent period during which 
the public may speak either under the public participation 
scheme or the petitions scheme (paragraph 4.1 (i) of this report 
refers); 
 

 (ii) approves the clarification of the wording of paragraph 9.1 of 
Annex 2 (Part A.4) (Appendix C to this report) on what is meant 
by reviewing “the adequacy of the response to the petition” 
(paragraph 4.1 (ii) of this report refers); and 
 

 (iii) Determines the timescale within which the lead petitioner must 
submit a request for a review by overview and scrutiny 
(paragraph 4.1 (iii) refers). 
 

5. Subject to 1 -  4 above and to any further  comments from the Advisory 
Group, to recommend to Council  on 24 June 2010 to approve: 
 

 (i) The Public Petitions Scheme as set out at Appendix C; and 
 

 (ii) The consequential amendments to Part A4 and D2 of the 
Constitution as set out in Appendices D and E 
 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
1. Introduction  

 
 1.1 The Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 

2009 contains a duty on local authorities to respond to petitions.   
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 172



27/05/10                                                               3 
 

 1.2 Statutory guidance (a copy of which is attached at Appendix A) has now 
been published and local authorities must have regard to this guidance 
in developing their petition schemes.  All authorities must have a 
petitions scheme in place by 15 June 2010 and the e-petitions duty 
comes into force on 15 December 2010. 
 

2. Current Arrangements for Petitions provided through the Constitution 
 

 2.1 Provision for the submission of petitions by members of the public is 
currently set out at Part A4 section 4 paragraph 4.1 and also in detail at 
Part A4 Annex 2 Petitions Procedure. 
 

 2.2 Members will recall that when the  new Constitution was drafted, the 
section relating to petitions was prepared having regard to the provisions 
of the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Bill, 
in order that, as far as possible, the Council already had in place a 
compliant scheme.  A report was submitted to the meeting of the Group 
on 25 January 2010 which referred to the provisions of the Act finally 
passed, together with draft Statutory guidance issued for consultation.  
The report set out the main discrepancies between the Council’s current 
petitions procedure and the requirements of the Act and guidance. 
 

 2.3 In addition to a number of minor textual amendments required to ensure 
compliance (such as clarification of exclusions from petitions schemes 
(eg: licensing and planning decisions), the main discrepancies are:- 
 

  (a) A requirement to debate petitions containing signatures above a 
given threshold  at a meeting of full Council (Chapter 2 of 
guidance); 
 

  (b) A requirement to include provision for petitions to trigger 
attendance of Senior Officers to attend a meeting of an overview 
and scrutiny committee, to answer questions about their work and 
how they are delivering public services (Chapter 3 of guidance); 
and 
 

  (c) A requirement to provide an e-petitions facility (Chapter 1 – 
paragraphs 41 – 46 of the guidance). 
 

 2.4 A draft Public Petitions Scheme is set out at Appendix C, whilst an 
amended Part A4 to the Constitution is set out at Appendix D. 
 

3. Matters for Consideration 
 

 (i) Thresholds 
 

 3.1 The Government recommends that local authorities set low thresholds 
such as those used in the model scheme in the statutory guidance (1% 
of population for petitions requiring debate by full Council and 0.5% for 
petitions requiring  senior officers to give evidence.) 
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 173



27/05/10                                                               4 
 

 3.2 The Council has already set a very low level for general petitions (10 
signatures) but may wish to take the opportunity to review that 
threshold. 
 

 3.2 Using the threshold levels recommended in the guidance would produce 
a figure of 2,500 (rounded down)  for a petition requiring a debate in 
Council and  1200 (rounded down) for a petition requiring a senior officer 
to give evidence. 
 

 3.3 The Group may also wish to consider the threshold level for e-
petitions and this is dealt with under the section relating to e-
petitions. (Paragraphs 3.13 to 3.15 refer) 
 

 3.4 Attached at Appendix B is a table showing the number of petitions 
received by Central Bedfordshire Council to date, the subject matter of 
the petition and the number of signatories. 
 

 (ii) Debates at Full Council 
 

 3.5 The statutory guidance requires that petitions containing signatures 
above a specified threshold shall trigger a debate in full Council.  The 
Council’s existing scheme allows any petitioner to submit their petition to 
Council and that petitions shall normally be debated for up to 10 
minutes. 
 
In practice, only three petitions have been received at full Council to date 
(one on leisure facilities in Sandy, one on a planning matter and  one on 
a traffic management matter), none was debated and the petitions were 
referred to the Executive, Development Management Committee and the 
Safer and Stronger Communities Portfolio holder’s Traffic Management 
meeting respectively. 
 

 3.6 Part A4 of the Constitution retains the provision to allow any petition to 
be submitted to Council and still retains the statement that “petitions 
shall normally be discussed by the Council for up to 10 minutes.”  
However the Scheme provides that petitions with over 2,500 signatures 
must be debated by Council.  Given that invariably smaller petitions 
are referred to the relevant committee for consideration, the Group 
is invited to consider whether it wishes to retain the provision 
relating to discussion of general petitions or wishes only to debate 
petitions above the larger threshold. 
 

 (iii) Senior Officers Giving Evidence 
 

 3.7 Local people now have the right to petition for a senior officer to attend a 
public meeting of an overview and scrutiny committee.  If the signatures 
exceed a specified threshold, a senior officer will have to attend the 
meeting and answer questions about their work. 
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 174



27/05/10                                                               5 
 

 3.8 This provision extends the existing powers of overview and scrutiny 
committees to require members and officers to attend their meetings and 
give evidence. 
 

 3.9 The statutory guidance indicates setting the threshold at around 0.5% of 
the total population, a figure of 1200 for Central Bedfordshire. 
 

 3.10 The Act provides that as a minimum the scheme should provide that the 
Head of Paid Service and Chief Officers should be required to provide 
information on their activities at overview and scrutiny meetings. 
 

 3.11 In Central Bedfordshire therefore the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief 
Executive/Director of Children’s Services, Director of Social Care, Health 
and Housing, Director of Sustainable Communities and Director of 
Customer and Shared Services would be required to give evidence.   
 
A minor amendment is suggested to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules as set out in Appendix E. 
 

 3.12 The guidance makes it clear that the final decisions on which officer 
should attend and the questions to be asked, rest with the overview and 
scrutiny committee.  The committee can decide that for the purposes of 
addressing the concerns raised in a petition it is more appropriate for 
another officer to be called to attend instead and may also wish to invite 
the elected Member with the responsibility for the service area 
concerned. 
 

 (iv) E-petitions 
 

 3.13 The 2009 Act requires that local authorities provide a facility for people 
to submit petitions to the authority electronically. 
 

 3.14 The Council’s Committee Management System, Modern.Gov, has an e-
petitions facility which is easy to use by members of the public. It is 
already in use by councils such as Lambeth, Brighton and Hove and 
Staffordshire County. Members may wish to look at the facility on the 
Lambeth Council website though the attached link:- 
 
http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov/mgePetitionListDisplay.aspx 
 
The same system will be used by Central Bedfordshire Council and 
arrangements are in hand to test this site with a view, subject to the 
Group’s endorsement, to introducing the e-petitions scheme on 1 
October 2010, ahead of the deadline of 15 December 2010. 
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 175



27/05/10                                                               6 
 

 3.15 As indicated above, the current constitutional requirement is for a 
minimum of 10 signatures for a petition to be valid. E-petitions require a 
different e-mail address for each name. It would be easy for one 
individual to create, at no cost, several e-mail addresses from which to 
enter a “signature” on the e-petition.  Members may therefore wish to 
reflect upon an appropriate threshold for e-petitions. 
 

4. Practical Issues during Operation of the Current Scheme 
 

 4.1 Operation of the current scheme has identified a number of issues which 
should be drawn to the attention of the Group:- 
 

  (i) The Council’s current public participation scheme allows speakers 
3 minutes in which to address a committee.  Speakers on a 
petition at Council are permitted to speak for 5 minutes.  The 
current petitions procedure is silent as to how long the lead 
petitioner may speak for at Executive or any meetings other than 
Council.  The Group are therefore asked to reflect on this 
anomaly and determine whether consistency should be 
adopted in relation to length of speaking permitted under 
either the public participation or petitions schemes (ie: should 
speakers be allowed 3 minutes or 5 minutes?) 
 

  (ii) If a petitioner is not satisfied with the Council’s response to their 
petition they are able to request a review by an overview and 
scrutiny committee who will then “review the adequacy of the 
response”. There is a need to provide clarity as to what is meant 
by “the adequacy of the response” – is this the written response or 
actions undertaken by the Council to deal with the petition?  In 
reality, what is meant is that the overview and scrutiny committee 
will review the steps taken in response to the petition (bearing in 
mind the list of potential steps available under Section 14 (6) of the 
2009 Act) and determine if it has dealt with the petition properly.  
The revised scheme at Appendix C therefore contains some 
additional wording to clarify and Members’ endorsement is 
sought to this change. 
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 176



27/05/10                                                               7 
 

  (iii) There is a lack of clarity around whether the right for a lead 
petitioner to seek a review by overview and scrutiny impacts upon 
the ability to implement a decision.  At present Executive decisions 
cannot be implemented until the expiry of the call-in period.  The 
emerging view is that the review by Overview and Scrutiny should 
be of the steps taken by the decision maker rather than a review of 
the decision itself.  Nonetheless it might be advisable to impose a 
deadline for submission of a request for a review.  The Monitoring 
Officer is currently required to respond to the petitioner on the 
outcome of the petition within 5 clear working days of the decision. 
The draft scheme at Appendix C provides for the review to be 
made within 10 working days of being informed of the outcome of 
the petition but the Group’s views are now sought on the  
appropriate timescale for submission of a request for review. 
 

Appendices: 
 
A “Listening to Communities” – Statutory Guidance on the Duty to 

Respond to Petitions 
 

B Table showing Petitions received by Central Bedfordshire Council to 
date. 
 

C Draft Public Petitions Scheme. 
 

D Part A4 of the Constitution – Revised 
 

E Extract from Part D2 of the Constitution – Revised 
 

 

 
Contact Officer Details:  Key Background Papers: 

Mel Peaston 0300 300 72050  Local Democracy, Economic 
Development and Construction Act 
2009; CBC’s Constitution; websites 
for Lambeth Council, Brighton and 
Hove Council, and Staffordshire 
County Council. 

 

Agenda Item 9
Page 177



Page 178

This page is intentionally left blank



Listening to communities:
Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

www.communities.gov.uk
community, opportunity, prosperity

Agenda Item 9
Page 179



March 2010
Department for Communities and Local Government

Listening to communities:
Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Agenda Item 9
Page 180



Communities and Local Government 
Eland House
Bressenden Place
London 
SW1E 5DU
Telephone: 030 3444 0000
Website: www.communities.gov.uk

© Crown Copyright, 2010

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.

This publication, excluding logos, may be reproduced free of charge in any format or medium for research, 
private study or for internal circulation within an organisation. This is subject to it being reproduced accurately 
and not used in a misleading context. The material must be acknowledged as Crown copyright and the title 
of the publication specified.

Any other use of the contents of this publication would require a copyright licence. Please apply for a Click-Use Licence 
for core material at www.opsi.gov.uk/click-use/system/online/pLogin.asp, or by writing to the Office of Public Sector 
Information, Information Policy Team, Kew, Richmond, Surrey TW9 4DU

e-mail: licensing@opsi.gov.uk

If you require this publication in an alternative format please email alternativeformats@communities.gsi.gov.uk

Communities and Local Government Publications
Tel: 0300 123 1124
Fax: 0300 123 1125
Email: product@communities.gsi.gov.uk
Online via the Communities and Local Government website: www.communities.gov.uk

March 2010

ISBN: 978-1-4098-2407-7

Agenda Item 9
Page 181



  Contents | 3

Contents

Introduction 5

Chapter 1 The petition scheme 7

 Summary of requirements 8

 Designing a petition scheme 9

 Responding to petitions 10

  Verification of signatures and acknowledgement 11

  Relevant matters  11

  Exclusions  12

    Petitions which are vexatious, abusive or otherwise  
inappropriate 12

   Petitions under other enactments 13

   Matters excluded by order 13

  Appropriate steps  13

 E-petitions 15

Chapter 2 Petition debates 17

 The debate 17

 Setting the threshold for debates 18

 Exclusions 19

Chapter 3 Giving evidence 20

 Existing guidance 20

 Setting an appropriate threshold 20

 Officers to which Section 16 applies 21

 Appropriate officer 21

 Giving ‘grounds’ 22

 Reporting 22

Chapter 4 Petition reviews 23

 Triggering a meeting of the full council 24

 Publicising the outcome of the review 24

Annex A  Model scheme  25

Agenda Item 9
Page 182



  Introduction | 5

Introduction

Context

1. The Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 (referred 
to in this document as ‘the 2009 Act’) aims to reinvigorate local democracy – putting 
local authorities at the forefront of the drive to reconnect people with public and 
political decision-making. This democratic renewal is about restoring trust and 
confidence in local government and its institutions and its starting point is the citizen.

2. While the Place Survey shows that 80 per cent1 of people are happy with their area, 
satisfaction with the way the council runs things is low at 45 per cent. The perception 
in communities that people can influence decisions that affect their local area is even 
lower. The duty to respond to petitions is an important step towards addressing this.

3. Signing a petition is one way for citizens to express their concerns and priorities to 
their local authority and the Citizenship Survey shows that petitions are the most 
popular and recognised form of civic action2. Some local authorities already have 
well developed processes for responding to petitions and approach them as an 
opportunity to listen to the community and demonstrate strong local leadership.

4. However, this is not the case across the board. Communities and Local Government 
examined all English local authority websites in April 2008, and found that only one 
in five councils make details about how to submit a petition publicly available. In a 
climate where only 39 per cent3 of people feel they can influence decisions in their 
local area and in some areas only 48 per cent4 feel that their council keeps them well 
informed about the services it provides, it is essential that we ensure people can easily 
find out how to send their views about public services to local decision makers. If not, 
people will continue to feel that their views are not welcome, and will be discouraged 
from trying to get involved in local decisions in the future.

5. The petitions provisions in the 2009 Act, are a significant step towards addressing 
this situation.

1 Place Survey: England – Headline Results 2008 (Revised), 
http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/corporate/statistics/placesurvey2008 

2 60 per cent of those people who engaged in an act of civic participation in 2007-2008 signed a petition, Citizenship Survey, 
2007-2008

3 Citizenship Survey April to December 2007
4 Place Survey

Agenda Item 9
Page 183



6 | Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Guidance

6. The statutory guidance to which local authorities will be required to pay regard 
can be found on pages 7 – 32. This guidance sets out the key principles and key 
requirements of the petitions duty and gives guidance to which local authorities5 
must have regard when designing and complying with their petition scheme. 
It gives information about the role of overview and scrutiny committees under these 
requirements. It also contains, at Annex A, a model scheme which local authorities 
may choose to adopt or to adapt to local circumstances. This guidance does not 
replicate the provisions set out in the legislation and should be read in conjunction 
with Sections 10 – 22 of the 2009 Act and the Local Authorities (Petitions)(England) 
Order 2010 (SI 2010/898).

5 The petitions duty applies to principal local authorities, defined for the purpose of Chapter 2 of the Local Democracy, Economic 
Development and Construction 2009 Act as a) a county council in England; b) a district council in England; c) a London borough 
council; d) the Common Council of the City of London in its capacity as a local authority; e) the Council of the Isles of Scilly; f) a county 
or county borough council in Wales. However, this guidance applies only to principal local authorities in England.

Agenda Item 9
Page 184



Chapter 1 The petition scheme | 7

Chapter 1

The petition scheme

Key principles:

• ensuring that local people know how to express their views

• local authorities will take action to respond to petitions

• local people know that their views have been listened to

• keeping prescribed requirements on councils to a minimum, and

• building on local authority best practice

Key outcome:

Everyone, no matter where they live, will be easily able to find information 
about how to petition their local authority and they will know what to expect 
from their local authority in response.

Overview

7. The petitions duty in the 2009 Act means that for the first time councils will be 
required to respond to petitions and tell local people what action is going to be taken 
to address their concerns. Petitions can no longer be ignored because they raise a 
difficult or challenging issue in the local area.

8. Government believes that local authorities should approach their petition scheme 
from the starting point of responding to all the petitions they receive. Petitions 
are an important tool for local people to raise concerns with their locally elected 
representatives and we expect petitions to trigger action where appropriate. This 
guidance includes examples of the responses local authorities should consider in 
four key areas, under-performing schools, alcohol related crime and disorder, under-
performing health services and anti-social behaviour.

9. The model scheme at Annex A demonstrates these principles by setting out that all 
petitions, regardless of the number of signatures, will receive a response providing 
they follow the guidelines set out in the scheme. The model scheme also gives details 
about the types of action the ‘model’ local authority will take in response to petitions 
on key areas of concern.

Agenda Item 9
Page 185



8 | Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Summary of requirements

10. The 2009 Act requires all principal local authorities in England to establish a scheme 
for handling petitions made to the authority.

11. The scheme:

• must be approved by a meeting of the full council before it comes into force;

• must be published on the principal local authority’s website and by any other 
method appropriate for bringing it to the attention of those who live, work or 
study in its area

• can be revised at any time but the revised scheme must be approved and 
publicised as detailed above; and 

• the authority must comply with its petition scheme.

12. The 2009 Act requires petition schemes to meet some minimum standards in order 
to ensure minimum entitlements which all citizens can expect. Beyond this small 
number of requirements local authorities have a high level of flexibility about how 
they approach the duty – leaving a lot of scope for local determination.

13. The requirements are:

• anyone who lives, works or studies in the local authority area, including under 
18’s, can sign or organise a petition and trigger a response

• a facility for making electronic petitions is provided by the local authority

• petitions must be acknowledged within a time period specified by the local 
authority

• among the many possible steps that the principal local authority may choose to 
take in response to a petition, the following steps must be included amongst the 
options listed in the scheme:

– taking the action requested in the petition

– considering the petition at a meeting of the authority

– holding an inquiry

– holding a public meeting

– commissioning research

– a written response to the petition organiser setting out the authority’s views 
on the request in the petition

– referring the petition to an overview and scrutiny committee

Agenda Item 9
Page 186



Chapter 1 The petition scheme | 9

• petitions with a significant level of support trigger a debate of the full council. 
Councils will determine this threshold locally but it must be no higher than 5 per 
cent of the local population (see Chapter 2)

• petitions with a requisite level of support, set by the local authority, trigger a 
senior local government officer to give evidence at a meeting of the authority’s 
overview and scrutiny committee (see Chapter 3)

• petition organisers6 can prompt a review of the local authority’s response if the 
response is felt to be inadequate (see Chapter 4)

14. The requirements listed above are the minimum set by the 2009 Act. Local 
authorities are encouraged to consider designing a scheme which is wider than these 
requirements, for example, responding to petitions from those who do not live, work 
or study in the local area or e-petitions which are not made through the authority’s 
own e-petition facility.

15. Section 18 of the 2009 Act clarifies that local authorities can include other 
information which they consider to be appropriate in their petition scheme. For 
example, details about how they handle petitions which do not qualify under 
the scheme or which apply to the functions of another principal local authority, 
particularly in areas with two tiers of local government.

16. Once published the local authority must comply with its petition scheme but can 
revise it at any time by taking the steps set out in Section 11 of the 2009 Act.

Designing a petition scheme

17. Principal local authorities, when designing their petition scheme, are expected to

• take into account local circumstances to ensure that the scheme is locally 
appropriate; for example, the same thresholds set in a densely populated urban 
area may not be suitable for a rural authority, the same thresholds may not be 
appropriate for a ward-specific issue in comparison to one affecting a county.

• ensure that the scheme is accessible to all; for example, the e-petitions facility is 
compliant with web accessibility standards

• ensure that the process is easy for citizens to use; for example, that the scheme 
sets thresholds which are achievable for petitions on very local, as well as 
authority wide, concerns, no previous knowledge of council procedure is needed 
in order to submit a petition, the scheme is written in Plain English, people know 
what they have to do in order to receive a response

6 “petition organiser”, in relation to a petition made to a principal local authority, means—
 (a) the person designated in the petition as the person with whom the authority may deal in relation to the petition, or
 (b) such other person as agrees with the authority to be the person with whom the authority may deal in relation to the petition;

Agenda Item 9
Page 187



10 | Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

18. Government expects any thresholds which local authorities decide to set to be locally 
achievable. We expect that where practical local authorities will set low thresholds, 
such as those used in the model scheme at Annex A. The model scheme takes the 
approach already used by some local authorities of setting no threshold for triggering 
a response to a petition. This means the ‘model’ local authority responds to all the 
petitions it receives, providing that the petition follows the guidelines set out in the 
scheme i.e. the petition is not discriminatory or about an excluded matter such as a 
planning decision.

19. Local authorities should also consider whether variable thresholds would be 
appropriate to their local circumstances. For example, top tier authorities might 
consider setting the same threshold as district councils for matters specific to each 
of their constituent district areas. Government expects local authorities’ petition 
schemes to ensure that petitions on very local issues, such as anti-social behaviour in 
a particular street, will receive a response from the council. Setting no threshold, or 
thresholds which vary depending on the issue or geographic location affected, might 
be one method of achieving this.

20. Thresholds can be reviewed after a period of activity and amended if necessary 
provided the process set out in paragraph 11 and Section 11 of the 2009 Act is 
followed. Should it become apparent that authorities are setting requirements which 
are unachievable, the Secretary of State has the power to direct them, to amend their 
petition schemes.

21. The model petition scheme at Annex A can be used by local authorities as a starting 
point and guide as to how a scheme might operate. Principal local authorities may 
choose to adopt this scheme as a whole or amend it to reflect local circumstances.

Responding to petitions

22. As a minimum, a local authority’s petition scheme must apply if a petition meets all of 
the following criteria:

• it calls for the authority to take action

• it is signed by the requisite number of people who live, work or study in the  
local area

• it is made under another enactment but does not qualify under that enactment 
(see paragraph 34) 

• If made electronically, it is made through the authority’s e-petition facility

23. The legislation does not define what constitutes a petition – in virtually all cases it 
will be immediately obvious whether something is or is not a petition. It is however 

Agenda Item 9
Page 188



Chapter 1 The petition scheme | 11

important that authorities make sensible judgements about whether to deal with an 
item of correspondence under its petition scheme or under some other procedure, 
such as its internal complaints procedure. The Government’s view is that authorities 
should treat as petitions for the purposes of their scheme anything which identifies 
itself as a petition, or which a reasonable person would regard as a petition. 

Verification of signatures and acknowledgement
24. Local authorities can choose to verify the signatures given on a petition should 

they wish. Authorities must take account of the signatures of people who provide 
valid addresses where they live, work or study within the local authority area; but 
authorities may take account of signatures of people who do not supply such 
information, or supply information which shows that they do not live, work or study 
in the area.

25. In the case of e-petitions the local authority must decide what counts as an authentic 
signature, for example it might decide that a valid email address is sufficient, a valid 
postcode or both.

26. All petitions which meet the scheme criteria (see Section 12(1) of the 2009 Act) must 
be acknowledged within the period specified in the authority’s scheme.

Relevant matters
27. Petitions are a valuable opportunity for local authorities to demonstrate strong 

leadership on issues of concern to the community. As community leaders and place 
shapers local authorities have a key interest in issues which, although wider than 
their functions, affect the local area. In view of this, and their role in the local area 
agreement process, Section 14(2)(b)(ii) of the 2009 Act requires top tier authorities 
to respond to petitions which relate to an improvement in the economic, social 
or environmental well-being of the authority’s area to which any of its partner 
authorities could contribute. This means that these local authorities must deal with 
petitions which relate to the functions of partner authorities as well as petitions 
which relate to their own functions, including petitions on matters which are sub-
regional and cross-authority.

28. In practice, this may mean acting as an advocate for the local community, working 
with partners to resolve the issue, lobbying a partner organisation on behalf of the 
community or instigating an overview and scrutiny review of the issue.

29. Should a petition of this sort call for something which goes against council policy a 
principal local authority may choose to say ‘no’ to the request. However, to ensure 
the step taken in response to the petition is substantive a local authority must clearly 
explain their position in their response.

Agenda Item 9
Page 189



12 | Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Exclusions
Petitions which are vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate
30. Local authorities should approach the petitions they receive positively and not 

assume that the motivation is one which is vexatious, abusive or inappropriate. 
However, petitions, which are in the opinion of the authority vexatious, abusive or 
otherwise inappropriate, do not qualify under the Section 14 requirement to take 
steps in response to the petition. Principal local authorities must acknowledge these 
petitions, as set out in Section 13 of the 2009 Act, and this acknowledgement should 
explain why the authority will not be taking action.

31. When considering whether a petition is vexatious a principal local authority should 
use as a starting point the guidance under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
Guidance to the Act states that “Deciding whether a [Freedom of Information] 
request is vexatious is a flexible balancing exercise, taking into account all the 
circumstances of the case. There is no rigid test or definition, and it will often be 
easy to recognise. The key question is whether the request is likely to cause distress, 
disruption or irritation, without any proper or justified cause”7. In most circumstances 
it should be the subject matter of the petition, rather than the personality of the 
petitioners or the manner in which the issue is supported, that is the deciding factor.

32. It is important that petitions which are abusive or otherwise inappropriate are also 
identified at this stage. Particular care must be taken when considering petitions 
which call for an officer to give evidence under Section 16 of the 2009 Act that 
these petitions relate to the role of the individual in delivering public services and not 
matters relating to an officer’s personality or private life.

33. The types of petitions which local authorities may consider inappropriate include 
those relating to matters which are part of ongoing legal proceedings or those 
which target individual members of a community. However, the decision on 
what constitutes an inappropriate petition is ultimately for the local authority to 
decide considering the circumstances of the individual case. In addition, it may be 
inappropriate for councils to deal with certain petitions during periods when they are 
subject to restrictions immediately before elections or referendums. A description 
of what may happen in these circumstances should be set out in the authority’s 
petition scheme – for example, the organiser might be informed of the date when 
the petition will be considered, or when material relating to it will be published on 
the council’s website. 

7 http://www.ico.gov.uk/upload/documents/library/freedom_of_information/detailed_specialist_guides/awareness_guidance_22_
vexatious_and_repeated_requests_final.pdf 

Agenda Item 9
Page 190



Chapter 1 The petition scheme | 13

Petitions under other enactments
34. Petitions made under other enactments, such as petitions under the Local 

Government Act 2000 asking for referendum on whether the area should have an 
elected mayor, should be dealt with according to the procedures set out in those 
enactments. If such a petition fails to meet the requirements of the enactment in 
question, for example a petition under the 2000 Act does not achieve the requisite 
number of signatures, it should be addressed through a local authority’s petition 
scheme in exactly the same manner as any other petition.

Matters excluded by order
35. In order not to duplicate procedures where established processes exist for communities  

to have their say Government has excluded the following matters from the scope of 
the petitions duty (see Local Authorities (Petitions)(England) Order 2010):

• any matter relating to a planning decision, including about a development plan 
document or the community infrastructure levy

• any matter relating to an alcohol, gambling or sex establishment licensing 
decision, 

• any matter relating to an individual or entity in respect of which that individual or 
entity has a right of recourse to a review or right of appeal conferred by or under 
any enactment

36. However, failure to deliver services in these areas remains within the scope of the 
duty. For example, a petition on an individual planning application is excluded from 
the duty but a petition about the local authority’s failure to deliver an effective service 
for planning applications would be within scope.

37. When in receipt of a petition on an excluded matter a principal local authority should 
acknowledge receipt of the petition and explain why the matter is not covered by 
the authority’s petition scheme. If the petition can be taken into account as part of 
existing procedures, the authority should explain how this will happen. If the petition 
cannot be taken into account as part of these procedures a principal local authority 
should explain the existing arrangements for communities to have their say as part of 
the process in question.

Appropriate steps
38. Principal local authorities are required to take appropriate steps when responding 

to the petitions they receive. A local authority’s response should be proportionate 
to the seriousness of the issue and the level of support contained in the petition. 
The actions referred to above (see paragraph 13 and in Section 14(6) of the 2009 
Act need to be among those considered but should not be regarded as the only 
options. Government encourages authorities to be innovative when considering 
their response to petitions, including considering any courses of action open to 
them that are specific to the subject of the petition.

Agenda Item 9
Page 191



14 | Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

39. Examples of appropriate steps local authorities should consider in response to specific 
subjects are included in the table below. 

Petition subject Appropriate steps

Alcohol related 
crime and disorder

If a local authority receives a petition about alcohol-related crime 
or disorder, Government expects them to fully consider with 
their partners the range of options available to them including 
considering the case for establishing a designated public place 
order or, as a last resort, establishing and imposing an alcohol 
disorder zone covering the relevant area.

Anti-social 
behaviour (ASB)

As the elected representatives of the local area, and often as social 
landlord and licensing authority, local councils have a significant 
role to play in tackling anti-social behaviour. Recently crime and 
disorder reduction partnerships, of which local authorities are 
a constituent member, have been challenged to set minimum 
service standards and publicise these to their local communities 
by March 2010. The police and many local authorities also have a 
target to increase public confidence that the police and council are 
working together to deal with crime and ASB issues that matter 
most locally. As such, when responding to petitions on ASB, local 
authorities are expected to consider, in consultation with local 
partners, all the options available to them including the wide range 
of powers and mechanisms they have to intervene as part of these 
roles. They should, for example, work with the neighbourhood 
policing team in the affected area to identify what action might be 
taken including what role CCTV might play, consider identifying a 
dedicated contact within the council to liaise with the community, 
Registered Social Landlords and other neighbourhood partners 
on issues of ASB in the area in question and, where appropriate, 
alert the crime and disorder reduction partnership and crime and 
disorder overview and scrutiny committee to the issues highlighted 
in the petition.

Agenda Item 9
Page 192



Chapter 1 The petition scheme | 15

Under-performing 
schools

Local authorities are expected to consider, in consultation with 
local partners, all the options available to them when working with 
schools to secure their improvement. For example, on behalf of the 
local authority, the school improvement partner will play a pivotal 
role, challenging and brokering support for poorly performing 
schools. Where a school is under performing the local authority 
should consider whether it is appropriate in the circumstances to 
issue a warning notice outlining expectations and a timeframe for 
the school to improve its performance standards. Other measures 
available to local authorities, where schools fail to comply with a 
warning notice or are in an Ofsted category of notice to improve 
(requiring significant improvement) or special measures include; 
appointing additional governors, establishing an interim executive 
board, removal of the school’s delegated budgets, requiring the 
school to enter into a formal contract or partnership or, only if the 
school is in special measures, closure.

Under-performing 
health services

Local authorities are expected to work with local health partners 
to consider the matter raised in the petition including, where 
appropriate, exploring what role the Local Involvement Network 
(LINk) might have in reviewing and feeding back on the issue. The 
health overview and scrutiny committee should also be alerted 
to the petition and where the matter is sufficiently or potentially 
serious, the issue should be referred to them to consider for review.

40. The local authority must notify the petition organiser of the steps it intends to take 
and publish this notification on the authority’s website.

E-petitions

41. The 2009 Act applies the same requirements to electronic petitions as to paper 
petitions, except for the following:

• principal local authorities are only required to respond to e-petitions made 
through their e-petition facility

• principal local authorities must decide, when a request to host an e-petition is 
received, whether the petition is appropriate for publishing on their facility

• principal local authorities will decide what equates to a signature on an e-petition 
(see paragraph 25 above and also Section 12(3)(b) of the 2009 Act)

• Principal local authorities are required to provide a facility for people to submit 
petitions to the authority electronically. In addition to this, local authorities can 
choose to respond to e-petitions submitted by other means and should indicate 
in their petition scheme how they will deal with these types of petitions.

Agenda Item 9
Page 193



16 | Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

42. A local authority’s petition scheme must secure that the authority’s e-petition 
facility allows citizens to create a petition which can be published online and made 
available to others for electronic signature. Government does not consider that mere 
acceptance of emailed petitions meets this requirement.

43. Local authorities should consider how best to integrate their e-petition process 
with relevant online information and existing online functions, for example, linking 
petitions to council meetings or decisions, to the minutes or webcast of the relevant 
meeting, to online forums and most importantly, to the authority’s published 
response to the petition.

44. When taking the decision whether to host an e-petition principal local authorities 
should, in addition to following the guidance above on vexatious, abusive and 
otherwise inappropriate petitions, consider those issues pertinent when publishing 
any information of their website. For example, issues such as data protection, libel 
and the statutory requirement, as a public body, to comply with equalities and anti-
discrimination legislation8.

45. Under Section 10 (2) of the 2009 Act principal local authorities are required to give 
reasons should they decide not to host an e-petition. This will allow petitioners an 
opportunity to amend and resubmit their petition.

46. Further sector led best practice guidance on e-petitions will be available, including 
practical advice for selecting and setting up an e-petitions facility and a set of 
recommended data standards.

8 Section 33 of the Equality Act 2006 sets out a list of “equality enactments” covering equalities and anti-discrimination legislation

Agenda Item 9
Page 194



Chapter 2 Petition debates | 17

Chapter 2

Petition debates

Key principle:

Local people know that their views have been listened to and they have the 
opportunity to hear their local representatives debate their concerns.

Key outcome:

Local people will know that if they can get the number of signatures specified 
in their council’s petitions scheme, they will be guaranteed a public, full council 
debate on their concerns.

47. A systematic review of evidence on empowerment found that when petitions are 
linked with decision making there are increased levels of empowerment9. Section 15 
of the 2009 Act therefore requires that petitions which receive a significant level of 
support should be debated at a meeting of the full council. Principal local authorities 
are required to set out in their petition scheme the number of signatures needed to 
trigger a debate as part of the authority’s response. This debate may be added to the 
agenda of a normal meeting of the full council.

48. Where a petition receives the required level of support to trigger a council debate 
the council should also consider what other steps they should take in order to ensure 
their response is adequate (see Chapter 4 – Petition Reviews). A debate alone may 
not be considered a sufficient response to a petition with this level of support.

The debate

49. The principle behind a petition debate is the increased transparency of the local 
decision making process. Therefore the petition organiser should be informed in 
writing about when the debate will be held and with sufficient notice to enable their 
attendance. This notification should also be published on the authority’s website. 
The Government expects local authorities to endeavour to consider such petitions 
at the next meeting of the full council but recognises that a balance will need to be 
struck between the debate of petitions and other council business. In exceptional 
cases, for example where there are a number of petitions already scheduled for 
debate, it may not be possible to debate every eligible petition at the next full council 

9 Empowering communities to influence local decision making – A systematic review of the evidence, Communities and Local 
Government 2009, http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/localdecisionreview

Agenda Item 9
Page 195



18 | Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

meeting. On these occasions the Government expects local authorities to ensure the 
remaining petition debate(s) takes place at the following meeting of the full council.

50. Petitioners should be offered the option of presenting their petition to the council 
at the beginning of the debate. Principal local authorities should also consider 
what other contribution the petitioners might make to the discussion, for example, 
answering questions put by councillors.

51. The debate should conclude with a decision being taken by the full council. This could 
be a decision to take the action the petition requests, not to take the action requested 
for reasons put forward in the debate, or to commission further investigation into 
the matter, for example by a relevant committee. Where the issue is one on which 
the council executive are required to make the final decision, the full council should 
decide whether to make recommendations to inform that decision. In line with the 
principle that local authorities should listen to the people they represent, and give 
them feedback, the petition organiser should then receive written notification of this 
decision. The notification should also be published on the local authority’s website.

Setting the threshold for debates

52. Local authorities are required to set a threshold for triggering a full council 
debate and to include this information in their petition scheme. The Government 
recommends where practical, that local authorities set low thresholds, such as 
those used in the model scheme at Annex A, at the outset. These thresholds can be 
reviewed after a period of activity and amended if necessary provided the process 
set out in paragraph 11 and Section 11 of the 2009 Act is followed. If, for example, 
no debates were triggered in the space of a year, a local authority should review their 
threshold and consider lowering it in order to ensure that it is locally achievable.

53. Should it become apparent that authorities are setting requirements which are 
unachievable, the Secretary of State has the power to direct authorities to amend 
their petition schemes.

54. The Local Authorities (Petitions)(England) Order 2010 stipulates that the maximum 
threshold which can be set is 5 per cent10 of the local population. We expect that in 
most cases a much lower figure will be considered locally appropriate. The maximum 
figure should be calculated using the estimate of the population of the area of the 
authority contained in the Registrar General’s population estimates for England 
and Wales published by the Office of National Statistics. The threshold should be 
expressed in the scheme as a simple figure so that people know the number of 
signatures they need to trigger a debate (see model scheme at Annex A for an 
example).

10 The 5 per cent maximum threshold is a proxy figure, easy for local authorities to calculate, but not directly related to the number of 
people eligible to sign a petition.

Agenda Item 9
Page 196



Chapter 2 Petition debates | 19

Exclusions

55. An authority is not required to hold a debate in response to any petition which falls 
outside the scheme, for example because it is vexatious, or relates to a licensing or 
planning decision. Petitions calling for evidence from an officer are also excluded 
from the requirement to hold a debate.

Agenda Item 9
Page 197



20 | Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Chapter 3

Giving evidence

Key principle:

Local people know that their views have been listened to.

Key outcome:

Local people have the right to petition for a senior member of council staff 
to attend a public meeting of the council’s overview and scrutiny committee. 
If enough people sign the petition, a senior officer will have to attend the 
meeting, answer the committee’s questions and explain how they are 
delivering public services.

56. Principal local authorities’ petition schemes must allow for petitions to trigger a 
senior member of council staff to attend a meeting of the authority’s overview and 
scrutiny committee and answer questions about their work. This builds on existing 
powers of overview and scrutiny committees who can already require members and 
officers to attend a meeting of the committee and give evidence. It is based on the 
principle that local government should be as transparent as possible and that officers 
are accountable to elected members. It allows members of the local community to 
make use of petitions to influence the way that this scrutiny takes place.

Existing guidance

57. Guidance11 under the Local Government Act 2000 is already in place to cover the 
way in which overview and scrutiny committees should conduct themselves when 
questioning an officer of the local authority – including, for example, considering 
the appropriate seniority of witnesses to ensure that junior officers are not put under 
undue pressure, and restricting questions to matters of fact and explanation.

Setting an appropriate threshold

58. Local authorities must consider the detail of how these provisions should work in the 
broader context of their petition scheme. An authority’s petition scheme must specify 
how many signatures will be needed to require an officer to attend a public hearing.

11 New council constitutions: guidance to English Authorities 
http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/localgovernment/pdf/155181.pdf

Agenda Item 9
Page 198



Chapter 3 Giving evidence | 21

59. Local authorities should consider a suitable threshold according to local 
circumstances. While local authorities will need to ensure that the level of support is 
appropriate for the steps triggered, thresholds should be achievable and expressed as 
a simple figure so that people know the number of signatures needed to trigger this 
type of response.

60. Again, we recommend where practical, that local authorities set low thresholds, such 
as those used in the model scheme at Annex A, at the outset. These thresholds can 
be reviewed after a period of activity and amended if necessary provided the process 
set out in paragraph 11 and Section 11 of the 2009 Act is followed. If, for example, 
no such evidence sessions are triggered by petition in the space of a year the local 
authority should consider the reasons for this including, for example, the level of 
public awareness of the scheme and whether the threshold set may be too high.

61. Should it become apparent that authorities are setting requirements which are 
unachievable, the Secretary of State has the power to direct authorities to amend 
their petition schemes.

Officers to which section 16 applies

62. Principal local authorities must determine which of their officers are able to be 
called to account in this way and include these details in their petition scheme. This 
information should include the names and job titles of the officers in question. In 
order for petitions to have a meaningful impact petitioners must be able to call on 
the most senior officers to attend meetings and give evidence. Section 16(5) of the 
2009 Act therefore requires that, as a minimum, petition schemes provide that the 
head of paid service – often known as the chief executive of the authority – and 
the most senior officers responsible for the delivery of services can be required to 
provide information on their activities at public meetings of overview and scrutiny 
committees. Petition schemes should apply to senior officers responsible for 
delivering council functions and public services and not junior members of staff.

Appropriate officer

63. The final decisions on which officer should attend, and the questions to be asked of 
him or her, rest with the overview and scrutiny committee. Under Section 16(10) of 
the 2009 Act overview and scrutiny committees can decide that for the purposes of 
addressing the concerns raised in a petition it is more appropriate for another officer 
to be called to attend instead. The committee may also consider it appropriate to call 
the relevant elected member with responsibility for the service area in question, in 
addition to the appropriate senior officer.

Agenda Item 9
Page 199



22 | Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Giving ‘grounds’

64. It is essential that the scrutiny prompted by petitions is appropriate and fair to the 
officers involved. They must not be exposed to inappropriate public scrutiny of 
their private lives, nor to harassment or bullying. To safeguard officers, Section 16 
of the 2009 Act stipulates that the ‘grounds’ given in the petition for attendance 
at a meeting of the overview and scrutiny committee must relate to their job – it 
cannot relate to their personal circumstances or character. An officer is not required 
to attend a meeting of the overview and scrutiny committee to give evidence if the 
petition calling for the attendance is deemed to be vexatious, abusive or otherwise 
inappropriate by the local authority.

Reporting

65. A principal local authority should inform the petition organiser when the overview 
and scrutiny meeting will take place with sufficient notice to enable them to attend. 
In any case where the subject of the petition is likely to lead to the discussion of 
confidential information, and therefore a resolution under the provisions in Part 5A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 to hold any part of the meeting in private, the 
reasons and process should be made clear in this notification. This notification should 
also be published on the local authority’s website.

66. After the relevant person has appeared before the overview and scrutiny committee, 
the committee must make a report or recommendations to the authority (under 
its existing powers) and send a copy of that report or recommendations to the 
petition organiser. If appropriate, the report should also be published on the 
authority’s website.

Agenda Item 9
Page 200



Chapter 4 Petition reviews | 23

Chapter 4

Petition reviews

Key principle:

That local people know that their views have been listened to.

Key outcome:

Petitioners will be able to appeal to the council’s overview and scrutiny 
committee if they feel the response from their council is not adequate.

67. Section 17 of the 2009 Act is essentially an appeal provision. If a petition organiser 
is not satisfied with the way an authority has dealt with a petition, this section gives 
the organiser the power to ask an overview and scrutiny committee to review that 
authority’s response to the petition. The overview and scrutiny committee will decide 
whether the steps taken by the authority in response to the petition were adequate. 
One of the steps that an authority might take in response to a petition is to refer it to 
the overview and scrutiny committee for consideration. Should the petition organiser 
subsequently be dissatisfied with the authority’s response to the petition, and request 
a review by the overview and scrutiny committee, that committee might feel that 
this could give rise to a conflict of interest. Should this be the case, authorities might 
wish to arrange for a differently constituted overview and scrutiny committee to carry 
out any such review. If this is not practicable the committee can still appropriately 
review whether the authority’s response to the committee’s recommendations 
was adequate. Considering petition appeals can help raise public awareness of the 
important role of overview and scrutiny.

68. The overview and scrutiny committee will bear in mind the list of potential steps 
which could be used to respond to the petition, listed in Section 14(6) of the 2009 
Act. An adequate response is likely to be proportionate to the issue set out in the 
petition and the level of support the petition has received. High quality responses 
which take people’s concerns seriously should lower the volume of appeals.

69. There may be petition organisers who appeal because the action their petition calls 
for is rejected, no matter how thorough the council’s process for coming to that 
decision. Reviewing appeals of this sort should not be onerous providing the principal 
local authority keeps records of how they have decided to respond to each petition.

Agenda Item 9
Page 201



24 | Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

70. If the committee has reason to be concerned about the adequacy of the authority’s 
response it may decide to carry out a full review of the issues raised in the petition 
using their powers under the Local Government Act 2000.

Triggering a meeting of the full council

71. If the overview and scrutiny committee is very concerned – for instance if the 
committee thinks that the authority is seriously neglecting its responsibility to listen 
to local people – under Section 21(3)(b) of the Local Government Act 200012 the 
committee can arrange for the full council to carry out the review function. That is to 
say the overview and scrutiny committee can arrange for the authority’s response to 
the petition to be discussed at a meeting of the full council.

Publicising the outcome of the review

72. Under Section 17(4)(b) of the 2009 Act the principal local authority must inform 
the petition organiser of the results of the review and Section 17(4)(c) requires that 
the results are also generally published on the authority’s website. Local people will 
therefore be able to see how many petition organisers appeal against their council’s 
response to petitions compared to other councils – and read the response to the 
appeals. People will therefore be able to judge for themselves how seriously their 
council is taking community petitions.

12 Reg 6(3) (b) of the Local Authorities (Alternative Arrangements) (England) Regulations (SI 2001/1299) for those authorities operating 
alternative arrangements.

Agenda Item 9
Page 202



Annex A Model scheme | 25

Annex A

Model scheme
In order to demonstrate how the framework set out in the 2009 Act can translate in 
practice we have created a model scheme which local authorities can choose to adopt 
or adapt. The example below is based on an authority with a population of 150,000 and 
is the public facing information about their petition scheme published on their website. 
The model authority has chosen to respond to all the petitions it receives. Petitions which 
contain 1500 signatures will be debated by the full council and petitions which call 
for evidence from a senior officer, and have 750 signatures, will trigger that response. 
The model authority operates executive arrangements and has responsibility for education 
and housing functions – authorities which do not have responsibility for such functions 
may wish to modify some of the illustrative examples given. The model authority holds 
a full council meeting on a 6 weekly basis. [‘link’ indicates where the council’s webpage 
includes a link to related information]

Petitions

The council welcomes petitions and recognises that petitions are one way in which 
people can let us know their concerns. All petitions sent or presented to the council 
will receive an acknowledgement from the council within 10 working days of receipt. 
This acknowledgement will set out what we plan to do with the petition. We will treat 
something as a petition if it is identified as being a petition, or if it seems to us that it is 
intended to be a petition.

Paper petitions can be sent to:

[insert address]

Or be created, signed and submitted online by following this link [link]

Petitions can also be presented to a meeting of the council. These meetings take place on 
a 6 weekly basis, dates and times can be found here [link]. If you would like to present your 
petition to the council, or would like your councillor or someone else to present it on your 
behalf, please contact [insert name] on [insert phone number] at least 10 working days 
before the meeting and they will talk you through the process. If your petition has received 
1500 signatures or more it will also be scheduled for a council debate [link to section on 
Full Council Debates] and if this is the case we will let you know whether this will happen 
at the same meeting or a later meeting of the council.

Agenda Item 9
Page 203



26 | Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

What are the guidelines for submitting a petition?

Petitions submitted to the council must include:

• a clear and concise statement covering the subject of the petition. It should state 
what action the petitioners wish the council to take

• the name and address and signature of any person supporting the petition.

Petitions should be accompanied by contact details, including an address, for the petition 
organiser. This is the person we will contact to explain how we will respond to the petition. 
The contact details of the petition organiser will not be placed on the website. If the 
petition does not identify a petition organiser, we will contact signatories to the petition to 
agree who should act as the petition organiser.

Petitions which are considered to be vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate will not 
be accepted. In the period immediately before an election or referendum we may need to 
deal with your petition differently – if this is the case we will explain the reasons and discuss 
the revised timescale which will apply. If a petition does not follow the guidelines set out 
above, the council may decide not to do anything further with it. In that case, we will write 
to you to explain the reasons.

What will the council do when it receives my petition?

An acknowledgement will be sent to the petition organiser within 10 working days of 
receiving the petition. It will let them know what we plan to do with the petition and when 
they can expect to hear from us again. It will also be published on our website.

If we can do what your petition asks for, the acknowledgement may confirm that we 
have taken the action requested and the petition will be closed. If the petition has enough 
signatures to trigger a council debate, or a senior officer giving evidence, then the 
acknowledgment will confirm this and tell you when and where the meeting will take 
place. If the petition needs more investigation, we will tell you the steps we plan to take.

If the petition applies to a planning or licensing application, is a statutory petition (for 
example requesting a referendum on having an elected mayor), or on a matter where there 
is already an existing right of appeal, such as council tax banding and non-domestic rates, 
other procedures apply. Further information on all these procedures and how you can 
express your views is available here [insert links]

We will not take action on any petition which we consider to be vexatious, abusive or 
otherwise inappropriate and will explain the reasons for this in our acknowledgement of 
the petition.

Agenda Item 9
Page 204



Annex A Model scheme | 27

To ensure that people know what we are doing in response to the petitions we receive 
the details of all the petitions submitted to us will be published on our website, except 
in cases where this would be inappropriate. Whenever possible we will also publish all 
correspondence relating to the petition (all personal details will be removed). When you 
sign an e-petition you can elect to receive this information by email. We will not send you 
anything which is not relevant to the e-petition you have signed, unless you choose to 
receive other emails from us. [link to account settings]

How will the council respond to petitions?

Our response to a petition will depend on what a petition asks for and how many people 
have signed it, but may include one or more of the following:

• taking the action requested in the petition

• considering the petition at a council meeting

• holding an inquiry into the matter

• undertaking research into the matter

• holding a public meeting

• holding a consultation

• holding a meeting with petitioners

• referring the petition for consideration by the council’s overview and scrutiny 
committee*

• calling a referendum

• writing to the petition organiser setting out our views about the request in 
the petition

*Overview and scrutiny committees are committees of councillors who are responsible for 
scrutinising the work of the council – in other words, the overview and scrutiny committee 
has the power to hold the council’s decision makers to account.

In addition to these steps, the council will consider all the specific actions it can potentially 
take on the issues highlighted in a petition. The table below gives some examples.

Agenda Item 9
Page 205



28 | Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Petition subject Appropriate steps

Alcohol related crime 
and disorder

If your petition is about crime or disorder linked to alcohol 
consumption, the council will, among other measures, consider 
the case for placing restrictions on public drinking in the area by 
establishing a designated public place order or, as a last resort, 
imposing an alcohol disorder zone. When an alcohol disorder 
zone is established the licensed premises in the area where 
alcohol related trouble is being caused are required to contribute 
to the costs of extra policing in that area. The council’s response 
to your petition will set out the steps we intend to take and the 
reasons for taking this approach. 

Anti-social behaviour 
(ASB) 

As the elected representatives of your local area, as social 
landlord and licensing authority, the council plays a significant 
role to play in tackling anti-social behaviour. The council, in 
conjunction with our partners in the local crime and disorder 
partnership have set out minimum service standards for 
responding to issues of anti-social behaviour, you can find more 
details about these standards here [insert link].

When responding to petitions on ASB, we will consider in 
consultation with our local partners, all the options available to 
us including the wide range of powers and mechanisms we have 
to intervene as part of our role as social landlord and licensing 
authority. For example, we will work with the neighbourhood 
policing team in the affected area to identify what action 
might be taken including what role CCTV might play, consider 
identifying a dedicated contact within the council to liaise 
with the community and neighbourhood partners on issues 
of ASB in the area in question and, where appropriate, we will 
alert the crime and disorder reduction partnership and crime 
and disorder overview and scrutiny committee to the issues 
highlighted in the petition.

Agenda Item 9
Page 206



Annex A Model scheme | 29

Under-performing 
schools 

We will consider, in consultation with local partners, all the 
options available to us when working with schools to secure 
their improvement. For example, on our behalf, the school 
improvement partner will play a pivotal role, challenging and 
brokering support for poorly performing schools. Where 
a school is under performing we will consider whether it is 
appropriate in the circumstances to issue a warning notice 
outlining expectations and a timeframe for the school to 
improve its performance standards. Other measures available 
to us, where schools fail to comply with a warning notice or are 
in an Ofsted category of notice to improve (requiring significant 
improvement) or special measures including; appointing 
additional governors, establishing an interim executive board, 
removal of the school’s delegated budgets, requiring the school 
to enter into a formal contract or partnership or, only if the 
school is in special measures, closure.

Under-performing 
health services 

We will work with local health partners to consider the matter 
raised in the petition including, where appropriate, exploring 
what role the Local Involvement Network (LINk) might have 
in reviewing and feeding back on the issue (the LINk is run by 
local individuals and community groups and independently 
supported – their role to find out what people want in terms 
of local health services, monitor those services and to use their 
powers to hold them to account). The health overview and 
scrutiny committee will also be alerted to the petition and where 
the matter is sufficiently or potentially serious, the issue will be 
referred to them to consider for review.

If your petition is about something over which the council has no direct control (for 
example the local railway or hospital) we will consider making representations on behalf 
of the community to the relevant body. The council works with a large number of local 
partners [link to list of LAA partners] and where possible will work with these partners to 
respond to your petition. If we are not able to do this for any reason (for example if what 
the petition calls for conflicts with council policy), then we will set out the reasons for this 
to you. You can find more information on the services for which the council is responsible 
here [link].

If your petition is about something that a different council is responsible for we will give 
consideration to what the best method is for responding to it. This might consist of simply 
forwarding the petition to the other council, but could involve other steps. In any event we 
will always notify you of the action we have taken.

Agenda Item 9
Page 207



30 | Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

Full council debates

If a petition contains more than 1,500 signatures it will be debated by the full council 
unless it is a petition asking for a senior council officer to give evidence at a public meeting. 
This means that the issue raised in the petition will be discussed at a meeting which all 
councillors can attend. The council will endeavour to consider the petition at its next 
meeting, although on some occasions this may not be possible and consideration will then 
take place at the following meeting. The petition organiser will be given five minutes to 
present the petition at the meeting and the petition will then be discussed by councillors 
for a maximum of 15 minutes. The council will decide how to respond to the petition at this 
meeting. They may decide to take the action the petition requests, not to take the action 
requested for reasons put forward in the debate, or to commission further investigation 
into the matter, for example by a relevant committee. Where the issue is one on which the 
council executive are required to make the final decision, the council will decide whether to 
make recommendations to inform that decision. The petition organiser will receive written 
confirmation of this decision. This confirmation will also be published on our website.

Officer evidence

Your petition may ask for a senior council officer to give evidence at a public meeting 
about something for which the officer is responsible as part of their job. For example, your 
petition may ask a senior council officer to explain progress on an issue, or to explain the 
advice given to elected members to enable them to make a particular decision.

If your petition contains at least 750 signatures, the relevant senior officer will give 
evidence at a public meeting of the council’s overview and scrutiny committee. A list of the 
senior staff that can be called to give evidence can be found here [insert link]. You should 
be aware that the overview and scrutiny committee may decide that it would be more 
appropriate for another officer to give evidence instead of any officer named in the petition 
– for instance if the named officer has changed jobs. The committee may also decide to call 
the relevant councillor to attend the meeting. Committee members will ask the questions 
at this meeting, but you will be able to suggest questions to the chair of the committee by 
contacting [insert details] up to three working days before the meeting.

E-petitions

The council welcomes e-petitions which are created and submitted through our website 
[link]. E-petitions must follow the same guidelines as paper petitions [link to guidelines]. 
The petition organiser will need to provide us with their name, postal address and email 
address. You will also need to decide how long you would like your petition to be open 
for signatures. Most petitions run for six months, but you can choose a shorter or longer 
timeframe, up to a maximum of 12 months.

Agenda Item 9
Page 208



Annex A Model scheme | 31

When you create an e-petition, it may take five working days before it is published online. 
This is because we have to check that the content of your petition is suitable before it is 
made available for signature.

If we feel we cannot publish your petition for some reason, we will contact you within this 
time to explain. You will be able to change and resubmit your petition if you wish. If you do 
not do this within 10 working days, a summary of the petition and the reason why it has 
not been accepted will be published under the ‘rejected petitions’ section of the website.

When an e-petition has closed for signature, it will automatically be submitted to [insert 
details]. In the same way as a paper petition, you will receive an acknowledgement 
within 10 working working days. If you would like to present your e-petition to a meeting 
of the council, please contact [insert details] within 10 working days of receipt of the 
acknowledgement.

A petition acknowledgement and response will be emailed to everyone who has signed the 
e-petition and elected to receive this information. The acknowledgment and response will 
also be published on this website.

How do I ‘sign’ an e-petition?

You can see all the e-petitions currently available for signature here [insert link].

When you sign an e-petition you will be asked to provide your name, your postcode and a 
valid email address. When you have submitted this information you will be sent an email to 
the email address you have provided. This email will include a link which you must click on 
in order to confirm the email address is valid. Once this step is complete your ‘signature’ will 
be added to the petition. People visiting the e-petition will be able to see your name in the 
list of those who have signed it but your contact details will not be visible.

What can I do if I feel my petition has not been dealt with 
properly?

If you feel that we have not dealt with your petition properly, the petition organiser has the 
right to request that the council’s overview and scrutiny committee review the steps that 
the council has taken in response to your petition. It is helpful to everyone, and can improve 
the prospects for a review if the petition organiser gives a short explanation of the reasons 
why the council’s response is not considered to be adequate. 

The committee will endeavour to consider your request at its next meeting, although 
on some occasions this may not be possible and consideration will take place at the 
following meeting. Should the committee determine we have not dealt with your petition 

Agenda Item 9
Page 209



32 | Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond to petitions

adequately, it may use any of its powers to deal with the matter. These powers include 
instigating an investigation, making recommendations to the council executive and 
arranging for the matter to be considered at a meeting of the full council.

Once the appeal has been considered the petition organiser will be informed of the results 
within 5 working days. The results of the review will also be published on our website.

Agenda Item 9
Page 210



ISBN 978-1 4098 2407 7

9 781409 824077ISBN: 978-1-4098-2407-7

Agenda Item 9
Page 211



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank



Ref. No. Location of Petition Type of Petition
No. of
Signat
ures

Relevant
Cttee

Relevant
Cttee
Meeting
Date

1 Houghton Regis - Gypsy
& Traveller Sites -
proposed plots

objecting to the
disproportionate allocation of
gypsy and traveller sites to
Houghton Regis and
requesting the drawing up of
alternative proposals

1350 Executive 23/06/09

2 Townfield Road and
Vicerage Hill, Flitwick

unsafe and deplorable
condition of the footpaths and
roads around this estate.

133 Traffic
Managem

ent

23/06/09

3 Northwood End Road,
Haynes

applying speed restrictions in
the village

13 Traffic
Managem

ent

21/07/09

4 Poynters Road, Dunstable amount and speed of HGV's
to be improved.

468 Traffic
Managem

ent

21/07/09

5 Leighton/Woburn Road,
Hockcliffe (A4012)

a footpath/cycleway and
footbridge along
Leighton/Woburn Road,
Hockcliffe.

tba Traffic
Managem

ent

21/07/09

6 Skimpot Lane,
Caddington Park (In the
electoral register this is
called Skimpot Road)

condition of Skimpot Lane 13 Traffic
Managem

ent

21/07/09

Petitions Logging System
Agenda Item 9

Page 213



Ref. No. Location of Petition Type of Petition
No. of
Signat
ures

Relevant
Cttee

Relevant
Cttee
Meeting
Date

Petitions Logging System

7 Southcott Avenue,
Leighton Buzzard (the
ward is Southcott but in
the register this is
Southcott Avenue
although there is a
Southcott Village)

introduction of a resident
permit scheme.

10 traffic
Managem

ent

21/07/09

8 Mount Pleasant, Aspley
Guise

introduction of traffic calming
measures received from
parents and teachers of
Aspley Guise Pre-School and
Lower School

67 Traffic
Managem

ent

21/07/09

9 Church View Avenue and
Hillside Close, Shillington

footpath to be resurfaced. 16 traffic
Managem

ent

21/07/09

10 Albion Street / Matthew
Street Dunstable

mis-use of parking and illegal
taxi office

Traffic
Managem

ent

21/07/09

11 Burr Street, Dunstable introduction of a resident
permit scheme.

22 Traffic
Managem

ent

21/07/09

12 A600 Deadmans Cross installation of a Vehicle
Activated Sign (VAS).

12 Traffic
Managem

ent

21/07/09

13 Richmond Road, Leighton
Buzzard

asking that the road become
a one way street.

tba Traffic
Managem

ent

21/07/09

14 Billington Road, Leighton
Buzzard

width restrictions along the
road to reduce the speed of
vehicles.

tba Traffic
Managem

ent

21/07/09

Agenda Item 9
Page 214



Ref. No. Location of Petition Type of Petition
No. of
Signat
ures

Relevant
Cttee

Relevant
Cttee
Meeting
Date

Petitions Logging System

15 Union Street, Dunstable installation of traffic calming
along the road.

75 traffic
Managem

ent

21/07/09

16 Heath Road and Heath
Park Road, Leighton
Buzzard

double yellow lines to both
sides of Heath Park Road at
its approach and junction with
Heath Road from Green
Gables

66 Traffic
Managem

ent

18/08/09

17 Boughton End, Lidlington resurfacing of the entire road
due to current state.

tba Traffic
Managem

ent

18/08/09

18 St Neots Road, Sandy Curb speeding traffic 138 Traffic
Managem

ent

15/09/09

19 Everton Road, The Heath Speed Reduction to 40mph,
additional footpath and
maintenance of existing
footpath

70 Traffic
Managem

ent

15/09/09

20 Housing Development in
Northfields Ward

Council not to give planning
permission for a housing
development

2699 Council
passed to
DevMan

24/09/09
then

21/10/2009

21 Southfields, Shefford The state of disrepair of the
footpaths.

40 Traffic
Managem

ent
22 97 Bus Service - Stotfold
and Fairfield Park

Do not want this vital service
to be withdrawn

151 Executive

Agenda Item 9
Page 215



Ref. No. Location of Petition Type of Petition
No. of
Signat
ures

Relevant
Cttee

Relevant
Cttee
Meeting
Date

Petitions Logging System

23 Husborne Crawley Reduction of Speed through
Husborne Crawley

13 Traffic
Managem

ent
24 Dunstable Withdrawal of No. 34 bus

service from calling at Salters
Way, Dunstable

59 Executive 13/10/09

25 Sandy Petition for a public swimming
facility in Sandy

1169 Council
then to
Executive

25/02/10
then

06/04/2010
26 Ivel Way, Flitwick Petition regarding dog fouling

in Ivel, Flitwick
66 Executive 06/04/10

27 School Buses for children
going to a Faith School in
Central Bedfordshire

Petition seeking the
continuation of school buses
going to Faith Schools in
Central Bedfordshire

1384 Executive 09/03/10

28 Hitchmead Foundation
Special School

Objection to proposals to
discontinue Hitchmead
Special School from 31
August 2010

25 Executive 06/04/10

Agenda Item 9
Page 216



1 

 
 
 

CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE PETITION SCHEME 
 

Petitions 
 
The Council welcomes petitions and recognises that petitions are one way in 
which people can let us know their concerns.  All petitions sent or presented 
to the Council will receive an acknowledgement from the Council within 3 
clear working days of receipt.  This acknowledgement will set out what we 
plan to do with the petition.  We will treat something as a petition if it is 
identified as being a petition, or it seems to us that it is intended to be a 
petition. 
 
Paper petitions can be sent to:- 
 
The Monitoring Officer 
Central Bedfordshire Council 
Priory House, Monks Walk 
Chicksands 
Beds   SG17 5TQ 
 
or be created, signed and submitted (with effect from 1 October 2010) online 
by following this link [insert link]. 
 
Petitions can also be presented to a meeting of the Council.  These meetings 
take place on a 8 weekly basis, dates and times can be found here 
http://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/modgov/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?
bcr=1 If you would like to present your petition to the Council, or would like 
your Councillor or someone else to present it on your behalf, please contact 
Democratic Services on 0300 300 4032 at least 7 clear working days before 
the meeting and they will talk you through the process.  If your petition has 
received 2,500 signatures or more it will also be scheduled for a Council 
debate [ Link to section on Full Council debates] and if this is the case we will 
let you know the date of the Council meeting at which the petition will be 
discussed. 
 
What are the guidelines for submitting a petition? 
 
Petitions submitted to the Council must include:- 
 
• a clear and concise statement covering the subject of the petition.  It 

should state what action the petitioners wish the Council to take; and 
 
• the name and address and signature of any person supporting the 

petition. 
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 217



2 

The petition should contain at least 10 signatures.  Higher thresholds apply to 
petitions requiring a debate in full Council [insert link to “Full Council 
Debates”] or to require a Senior Officer to give evidence [insert link to “Officer 
Evidence”]. 
 
The petition should concern a matter for which the Council is responsible or 
relate to an improvement in the economic, social or environment well-being of 
the Council’s area to which any of our partners could contribute. 
 
Petitions should be accompanied by contact details, including an address, for 
the petition organiser.  This is the person we will contact to explain how we 
will respond to the petition.  The contact details of the petition organiser will 
not be placed on the website.  If the petition does not identify a petition 
organiser will contact signatories to the petition to agree who should act as 
the petition organiser. 
 
Petitions which are considered to be vexatious, abusive or otherwise 
inappropriate will not be accepted.   
 
In the period immediately before an election or referendum we may need to 
deal with your petition differently – if this is the case well explain the reasons 
and discuss the revised timescales which will apply.  If a petition does not 
follow the guidelines set out above, the Council may decide not to do anything 
further with it.  In that case, we will write to you to explain the reasons. 
 
What will the Council do when it receives my petition? 
 
An acknowledgement will be sent to the petition organiser within 3 clear 
working days of receiving the petition.  It will let them know what we plan to do 
with the petition and when they can expect to hear from us again.  It will also 
be published on our website. 
 
If we can do what your petition asks for, the acknowledgement may confirm 
that we have taken the action requested and the petition will be closed.  If the 
petition is being referred to a meeting of the Council’s Executive or a 
Committee the acknowledgement will advise where and when the meeting will 
take place. If the petition has enough signatures to trigger a Council debate, 
or a Senior Officer giving evidence, then the acknowledgement will confirm 
this and tell you when and where the meeting will take place.  If the petition 
needs more investigation, we will tell you the steps we plan to take. 
 
If the petition applies to a planning or licensing application, is a statutory 
petition (for example requesting a referendum on having an elected mayor), or 
a matter where there is already an existing right of appeal, such as Council 
tax banding and non-domestic rates, other procedures apply.  Please contact 
Democratic Services [insert link] on 0300 300 4032 for more guidance. 
 
We will not take action on any petition which we consider to be vexatious, 
abusive or otherwise inappropriate and will explain the reasons for this in our 
acknowledgement of the petition. 

Agenda Item 9
Page 218



3 

 
To ensure that people know what we are doing in response to the petitions we 
receive the details of all the petitions submitted to us will be published on our 
website, except in cases where this would be inappropriate. Whenever 
possible we will also publish all correspondence relating to the petition (all 
personal details will be removed). When you sign an e-petition you can elect 
to receive this information by email. We will not send you anything which is 
not relevant to the e-petition you have signed, unless you choose to receive 
other emails from us.  
 
How will the Council respond to petitions? 
 
Our response to a petition will depend on what a petition asks for and how 
many people have signed it, but may include one or more of the following:- 
 
•  taking the action requested in the petition 
•  considering the petition at a Council meeting 
•  holding an inquiry into the matter 
•  undertaking research into the matter 
•  holding a public meeting 
•  holding a consultation 
•  holding a meeting with petitioners 
•  referring the petition for consideration by the Council’s relevant overview 

and scrutiny committee* 
•  writing to the petition organiser setting out our views about the request in 

the petition 
 

*Overview and scrutiny committees are committees of Councillors who are 
responsible for scrutinising the work of the Council and its Executive – in other 
words, the overview and scrutiny committee have the power to hold the 
Council’s decision makers to account. 
 
In addition to these steps, the Council will consider all the specific actions it 
can potentially take on the issues highlighted in a petition.  
 
If your petition is about something over which the Council has no direct control 
(for example the local railway or hospital) we will consider making 
representations on behalf of the community to the relevant body. The Council 
works with a large number of local partners [link to list of LAA partners] and 
where possible will work with these partners to respond to your petition. If we 
are not able to do this for any reason (for example if what the petition calls for 
conflicts with Council policy), then we will set out the reasons for this to you. 
You can find more information on the services for which the Council is 
responsible here [link]. 
 
If your petition is about something that a different Council is responsible for, 
we will give consideration to what the best method is for responding to it. This 
might consist of simply forwarding the petition to the other Council, but could 
involve other steps. In any event we will always notify you of the action we 
have taken. 

Agenda Item 9
Page 219



4 

 

Full Council debates 
 
If a petition contains more than 2,500 signatures it will be debated by the full 
Council unless it is a petition asking for a senior Council officer to give 
evidence at a public meeting. This means that the issue raised in the petition 
will be discussed at a meeting which all Councillors can attend. The Council 
will endeavour to consider the petition at its next meeting, although on some 
occasions this may not be possible and consideration will then take place at 
the following meeting. The petition organiser will be given three minutes to 
present the petition at the meeting and the petition will then be discussed by 
Councillors for a maximum of 15 minutes. The Council will decide how to 
respond to the petition at this meeting. They may decide to take the action the 
petition requests, not to take the action requested for reasons put forward in 
the debate, or to commission further investigation into the matter, for example 
by a relevant committee. Where the issue is one on which the Council’s 
Executive is required to make the final decision, the Council will decide 
whether to make recommendations to inform that decision. The petition 
organiser will receive written confirmation of this decision. This confirmation 
will also be published on our website. 

 
Officer evidence 
 
Your petition may ask for a senior Council officer to give evidence at a public 
meeting about something for which the officer is responsible as part of their 
job. For example, your petition may ask a senior Council officer to explain 
progress on an issue, or to explain the advice given to elected members to 
enable them to make a particular decision.  
 
If your petition contains at least 1200 signatures, the appropriate senior officer 
will give evidence at a public meeting of the Council’s relevant overview and 
scrutiny committee. A list of the senior staff that can be called to give 
evidence can be found here [insert link]. You should be aware that the 
overview and scrutiny committee or its Chairman, may decide that it would be 
more appropriate for another officer to give evidence instead of any officer 
named in the petition – for instance if the named officer has changed jobs. 
The committee may also decide to call the relevant Councillor to attend the 
meeting. Committee members will ask the questions at this meeting, but you 
will be able to suggest questions to the chairman of the committee by 
contacting Democratic Services [insert link] on 0300 300 4032 up to three 
clear working days before the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 220



5 

E-petitions (to be introduced with effect from 1 October 2010) 
 
The Council welcomes e-petitions which are created and submitted through 
our website [link]. E-petitions must follow the same guidelines as paper 
petitions [link to guidelines]. The petition organiser will need to provide us with 
their name, postal address and email address. You will also need to decide 
how long you would like your petition to be open for signatures. Most petitions 
run for six months, but you can choose a shorter or longer timeframe, up to a 
maximum of 12 months. 
 
When you create an e-petition, it may take five working days before it is 
published online.  This is because we have to check that the content of your 
petition is suitable before it is made available for signature. 
 
If we feel we cannot publish your petition for some reason, we will contact you 
within this time to explain. You will be able to change and resubmit your 
petition if you wish. If you do not do this within 10 clear working days, a 
summary of the petition and the reason why it has not been accepted will be 
published under the ‘rejected petitions’ section of the website. 
 
When an e-petition has closed for signature, it will automatically be submitted 
to Democratic Services. In the same way as a paper petition, you will receive 
an acknowledgement within 3 clear working days. If you would like to present 
your e-petition to a meeting of the Council, please contact Democratic 
Services [insert link] on 0300 300 4032 within 7 clear working days of receipt 
of the acknowledgement. 
 
A petition acknowledgement and response will be emailed to everyone who 
has signed the e-petition and elected to receive this information. The 
acknowledgment and response will also be published on this website. 

 
How do I ‘sign’ an e-petition? 
 
You can see all the e-petitions currently available for signature here [insert 
link]. 
 
When you sign an e-petition you will be asked to provide your name, your 
postcode and a valid email address. When you have submitted this 
information you will be sent an email to the email address you have provided. 
This email will include a link which you must click on in order to confirm the 
email address is valid. Once this step is complete your ‘signature’ will be 
added to the petition. People visiting the e-petition will be able to see your 
name in the list of those who have signed it but your contact details will not be 
visible. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 221



6 

What can I do if I feel my petition has not been dealt 
with properly? 
 
If you feel that we have not dealt with your petition properly, the petition 
organiser has the right to request that the Council’s relevant overview and 
scrutiny committee review the steps that the Council has taken in response to 
your petition. Your request should be submitted within 10 clear working days 
of being advised of the Council’s response.  It is helpful to everyone, and can 
improve the prospects for a review if the petition organiser gives a short 
explanation of the reasons why the Council’s response is not considered to be 
adequate. 
 
The committee will endeavour to consider your request at its next meeting, 
although on some occasions this may not be possible and consideration will 
take place at the following meeting. Should the committee determine we have 
not dealt with your petition adequately, it may use any of its powers to deal 
with the matter. These powers include instigating an investigation, making 
recommendations to the Council’s Executive and arranging for the matter to 
be considered at a meeting of the full Council.  
 
Once the appeal has been considered the petition organiser will be informed 
of the results within 10 clear working days. The results of the review will also 
be published on our website. 
 
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 222



Part A4 / Page 1

APPENDIX D
A4 CITIZENS AND THE COUNCIL

1. Citizens’ rights

1.1 The Council welcomes participation by citizens in its work and has
put in place procedures allowing public participation in meetings to
enable citizens to influence the Council’s decision making process.
Citizens have the rights set out below. Their rights to information are
explained in more detail in the Access to Information Procedure
Rules in Part G.2 of the constitution.

2. Voting

2.1 Citizens on the electoral roll for the area have the right to vote and
sign a petition to request a referendum for an elected mayor form of
constitution.

3. Information. Citizens have the right to:-

3.1 Attend meetings of the Council and its committees except where
confidential or exempt information is likely to be disclosed, and the
meeting is therefore held in private;

3.2 Attend meetings of the Executive when Key Decisions and other
matters are being considered (except where confidential or exempt
information is likely to be disclosed and part of the meeting is
therefore held in private);

3.3 Find out from the forward plan what Key Decisions will be taken by
the Executive and when;

3.4 See reports and background papers, and any records of decisions
made by the Council and the Executive;

3.5 Inspect the Council’s accounts and make their views known to the
external auditor;

3.6 Receive information held by the Council subject to the Freedom of
Information Act 2000; and

3.7 Obtain a copy of the constitution.

4. Participation (including petitions). Citizens have the right to:-

4.1 Speak at, submit petitions and e-petitions and make deputations to
meetings of the Council, its committees and the Executive in
accordance with the Council’s Public Participation Procedure as set
out at Appendix A to Part A4 of the constitution;

Formatted: Font: (Default)
Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default)
Arial

Deleted: C

Agenda Item 9
Page 223



Part A4 / Page 2

4.2 Participate in and contribute to investigations by overview and
scrutiny committees; and

4.3 Contact their local councillor about any matters of concern to them.

5. Complaints. Citizens have the right to complain to:-

5.1 The Council itself under its complaints procedure and receive a
timely response;

5.2 The Council’s Standards Committee about a breach of the
Councillors’ Code of Conduct and receive a timely response;

5.3 The Ombudsman after using the Council’s own complaints
procedure; and

5.4 Their elected ward members.

6. Citizens’ responsibilities

6.1 Citizens must observe the law in their dealings with councillors and
officers.

Agenda Item 9
Page 224



Part A4 / Page 3

APPENDIX A
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PROCEDURE
Asking questions, making statements, deputations and presenting petitions at
meetings of the Council, the Executive or Committees

1. When Public Participation will Operate

1.1 Members of the public will be able to participate at meetings of:-

The Full Council;
The Executive;
The Overview and scrutiny committees
Licensing Committee 1

Regulation Committee 1

(1: where a public hearing is being conducted by the Licensing
Committee or its sub committees or the Regulation Committee, public
participation shall be considered in accordance with the separate
procedure applying to such hearings)

Development Management Committee2

(2: a separate public participation procedure operates where the
Development Management Committee is determining planning or
other applications, as set out in Annex 3 of this procedure)

General Purposes Committee
Audit Committee
Standards Committee

by asking questions or making statements at either, or both of, the
beginning of the meeting and/or on individual agenda items, by
presenting petitions or making a deputation

1.2 At other council forums open to the public but not referred to in 1.1
above, formal or informal means of public participation may be permitted.
Please ask the contact officer for the forum you are interested in
participating in for more details.

1.3 The arrangements for public participation at the meetings will be as
follows:-

Annex 1 Procedure for Public Questions, Statements and Deputations
at Meetings

Annex 2 Petitions

Annex 3 Procedure for Public Participation in Development
Management Committee Meetings

Agenda Item 9
Page 225



Part A4 / Page 4

2. General Principles Governing All Public Participation

2.1 Questions, statements, deputations or petitions are not permitted
on:-

2.1.1 Any matter relating to a planning decision (in respect of
petitions only this exclusion shall include any matter about
a development plan document or the community
infrastructure levy)

However participation on planning applications is permitted
under the separate public participation scheme that
operates where the Development Management Committee
is determining planning or other applications, as set out at
Annex 3 to this Appendix.

2.1.2 Any matter relating to an alcohol, gambling or sex
establishment licensing decision.

A separate procedure applies for quasi judicial hearings
being held by the relevant committee or sub committee
and this is available, on request, from the Monitoring
Officer.

2.1.3 Any matter relating to the performance or employment of
individual council staff;

A separate procedure applies to petition for a senior
Council officer to give evidence at a public meeting of the
Council’s relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee (See
paragraph 8 of Annex 2)

2.1.4 Any matter relating to an individual or an entity where that
individual or entity has a right of recourse or right of appeal
conferred by or under any enactment ;

2.1.5 Complaints about the conduct of a councillor

(A separate procedure applies for dealing with complaints
against councillors)

2.1.6 matters which are "confidential" or "exempt" business.

2.2 Authority of the chairman

Deleted: individual planning
matters

Deleted: – h

Deleted: Licensing or
regulation issues in respect of
which a quasi judicial hearing is
being held by the relevant
committee or sub-committee.

Deleted: such hearings

Deleted: and

Deleted: items

Deleted: matters in respect of
which a right of appeal or
review exists

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 2

... [1]

Agenda Item 9
Page 226



Part A4 / Page 5

2.2.1 The chairman will have the right to stop persons from
speaking at any time if he/she considers any speech to be
defamatory, improper or outside the responsibilities of the
Council.

2.2.2 The chairman may vary or suspend the operation of this
procedure in advance of or during the meeting, if he/she
considers:-

2.2.2.1 that it is necessary to do so for the purpose of
maintaining order at the meeting; or

2.2.2.2 that it is convenient and conducive to the
despatch of business to do so.

(Note: the term “public” also includes town/parish councillors or clerks.)

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 2

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 2

Agenda Item 9
Page 227



Part A4 / Page 6

Annex 1

PROCEDURE FOR PUBLIC QUESTIONS, STATEMENTS AND DEPUTATIONS
AT MEETINGS

1. Public Questions, Statements and Deputations at the Beginning of the
Meeting

1.1 At the beginning of each meeting of the Council (other than annual or
extraordinary meetings, except at the discretion of the chairman), the
Executive and committees, a period of up to 15 minutes will be allowed
for public questions or statements, deputations and responses.

1.2 The Chairman of the Council, executive or committee will have discretion
to extend this period.

1.3 Questions, statements or deputations should be relevant to the functions
of the body to which they are addressed and relate to matters over which
the Authority has powers or duties, including where the Council shares
delivery responsibilities, or which affect the area of the Authority.

1.4 Normally no more than three speakers will be allowed to speak at a
meeting on any one subject, with each individual speaker being restricted
to a total of three minutes.

1.5 In the case of deputations, or where there are groups of speakers for or
against an issue, each group will only have a total of three minutes to
speak and, therefore, they will be encouraged to appoint a spokesperson.

1.6 Questions, statements and deputations during the 15 minute period will
also be subject to the principles set out at paragraphs 3 below and to the
general principles governing public participation at paragraph 2 of
Appendix A.

2. Questions, Statements and Deputations on Individual Agenda Items

2.1 Questions, statements or deputations on an individual agenda item will
be allowed immediately after it has been introduced by the report author,
another officer, relevant member or the chairman of the Council,
Executive or committee.

2.2 Normally no more than three speakers will be allowed to speak on any
one subject, with each individual speaker being restricted to a total of
three minutes.

2.3 In the case of deputations, or where there are groups of speakers for or
against an issue, each group will only have a total of three minutes to
speak and, therefore, they will be encouraged to appoint a
spokesperson.

Agenda Item 9
Page 228



Part A4 / Page 7

2.4 After members of the public have been able to speak, the chairman may
invite the relevant member (or, at a meeting of the Executive or a
committee, the relevant officer) to comment and/or clarify matters.

2.5 The item will then be considered by members of the Council, executive
or committee.

2.6 Questions, statements and deputations on individual agenda items will
also be subject to the principles set out at paragraphs 3 below and to the
general principles and exceptions governing public participation at
paragraph 2 of Appendix A.

3. Principles Governing Public Questions and Statements

3.1 Advance Notice:-

3.1.1 Advance notice of questions, statements or deputations need
not be submitted in writing but if notice has been given, it will be
easier to give a more detailed reply;

3.1.2 However persons wishing to speak must arrive no later than 15
minutes before the start of the meeting and complete a form
indicating their wish to speak; and

3.1.3 Where a speaker has given advance notice, it is recommended
that he/she be present at the start of the meeting, since the
timing of individual agenda items cannot be predicted.

3.2 The order of speaking will be in the order in which requests are received.

3.3 Questions should be directed to the chairman, who may request the
appropriate member (or at a meeting of the Executive or a committee,
the relevant officer), to reply.

3.4 Each question will be put and answered without discussion, although the
chairman may allow:-

3.4.1 Further clarification or supplementary questions, including the
Chairman asking questions of the member of the public; and

3.4.2 A Member to request that an issue raised be included on the
agenda of a future meeting.

3.5 Any question which does not receive a response through lack of time or
notice will be given a written reply within 5 working days after the
meeting on the condition that the questioner has completed and handed
in a form containing full details of the question and his/her name and
address.

Agenda Item 9
Page 229



Update 1 May 2010 Part A4 / Page 8

Annex 2

PETITIONS SCHEME

1. Submission and Content of Petitions

1.1 Members of the public may present the Council, or the Executive, or a
committee with petitions, upon giving at least 7 clear working days
notice in writing of the petition to the Monitoring Officer. If, following
consideration of the petition as provided in paragraphs 4 or 5 below,
the petition organiser is not satisfied with the response, he/she may
request that the response be reviewed by the relevant overview and
scrutiny committee in accordance with the procedure in paragraph 6.

1.2 The petition shall:-

1.2.1 be addressed to the Monitoring Officer of the Council;

1.2.2 contain a clear and concise statement covering the subject of
the petition and what action the petitioner wishes the Council to
take.;

1.2.3 be validly signed by at least 10 persons who live, work or study
in the Authority’s area (a petition shall be deemed to be “validly
signed” if the person has signed it and the petition states the
person’s name and address and the date of signature)

1.2.4 Designate one of the persons who has validly signed it as the
person with whom the Council may deal in relation to the
petition (Where no lead petitioner is identified, the Council will
contact signatories to the petition to agree who shall act as the
petition organiser).

1.3 Petitions should be relevant to the forum to which they are addressed
and:-

1.3.1 concern a matter which relates to a function of the Authority; or

1.3.2 whilst not relating to a function of the Authority, relate to an
improvement in the economic, social or environmental well-
being of the Authority’s area to which any of its partner
authorities could contribute.

2. Rejection of Petitions

2.1 The Monitoring Officer may reject any petition which :-

Deleted: PROCEDURE

Deleted: c

Deleted: request the Council
to take or cease action
described in the petition

Deleted: .

Deleted: 2.

Deleted: : October

Deleted: 20

Deleted: 09

... [2]

Agenda Item 9
Page 230



Update 1 May 2010 Part A4 / Page 9

2.1.1 does not meet the criteria set out in paragraphs 1.2 and 1.3
above in the case of written petitions or the criteria set out in
paragraphs 1.2.2 and 1.3 in the case of e-petitions; and/or

2.1.2 relates to a matter which is excluded under the provisions of
paragraph 2.1 of Appendix A; and/or

2.1.3 is, in his/her reasonable opinion, vexatious, abusive or
otherwise inappropriate to be dealt with under the Council’s
Petitions Scheme; and/or

2.1.4 is the same as, or has a substantially similar effect to a petition
which has been made to the Council within a period of six
months ending with the date on which the petition was made to
the Council; and/or

2.15 in the case of e-petitions, breaches data protection, libel or the
Authority’s statutory requirement, as a public body, to comply
with equalities and anti-discrimination legislation.

3. Acknowledgement of Petitions

3.1 The Monitoring Officer will send a written acknowledgment to the
petition organiser within 3 clear working days of the date of receipt. The
acknowledgement will give information about what the Council
proposes to do in response to the petition, including the date and time
at which the petition will be considered by the Council, Executive or
relevant committee and will advise the petitioners of their rights to
speak under the provisions of this procedure.

4. E Petitions

4.1 Members of the public may also submit e-petitions through the
Council’s website.

4.2 The petition organiser shall provide their name, postal address and
email address and indicate for how long the petition should be open to
signature.

4.3 E-petitions shall also comply with the provisions of paragraphs 1.2.2
and 1.3 above.

4.4 The Monitoring Officer shall be authorised to determine whether to host
an e-petition and may reject any petition which he/she deems
inappropriate. The decision on whether to host an e-petition will be
made within 5 working days of submission of the original petition.

Deleted: 2

Deleted: 3

Deleted: .

Deleted: e

Deleted: : October

Deleted: 20

Deleted: 09

Agenda Item 9
Page 231



Update 1 May 2010 Part A4 / Page 10

4.5 If the Monitoring Officer determines not to host an e-petition, he/she will
notify the petition organiser within 3 clear working days of such
decision. The petition organiser may, within 10 clear working days,
change and resubmit the petition. In the event the petition organiser
does not do this, a summary of the petition and the reason why it has
not been accepted will be published under the “rejected petitions”
section of the Council’s website.

4.6 Members of the public signing an e-petition will be required to provide
their name, postcode and a valid email address. On submission of this
information , an email will be sent to the email address provided with a
link to confirm the email address is valid. Upon completion of this step,
the signature will be added to the petition.

4.7 When an e-petition has closed for signature, it will be submitted to the
next available meeting of the Executive or relevant committee of the
Council having regard to the subject matter concerned. The Monitoring
Officer will send a written acknowledgement of the petition as provided
in paragraph 3. If the petition organiser wishes to present the e-petition
to the Council, they shall notify the Monitoring Officer within 10 working
days of receipt of the acknowledgement.

5. Petitions presented at full Council

5.1 At meetings of full Council (other than annual or extraordinary meetings,
except at the discretion of the chairman), a period of up to 30 minutes
per meeting shall be allowed for the receipt and discussion of petitions.

5.2 Petitions will be considered in the order that they are received on the
basis of the following procedure:-

5.2.1 Petitions should be presented by either:-

5.2.1.1 The lead petitioner; or

5.2.1.2 An individual nominated by the lead petitioner; or

5.2.1.3 A member of the Council on behalf of the lead
petitioner.

5.2.2 who shall be entitled to speak for no more than 3 minutes to
summarise the contents of the petition.

5.3 Petitions shall normally be discussed by the Council for up to 10
minutes:-

5.4 Petitions containing more than 2,500 signatures must be debated by
the Council and will be discussed for up to 15 minutes.

Formatted: Font: Bold

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 4

Deleted: and the Council will
take one of the following steps
in relation to the petition

Deleted: : October

Deleted: 20

Deleted: 09

Agenda Item 9
Page 232



Update 1 May 2010 Part A4 / Page 11

5.5 Petitions calling for evidence from an officer under paragraph 8 are
excluded from the requirement for debate by the Council.

5.6 The Council will take one of the following steps in relation to the
petition:-

5.6.1 Giving effect to the request in the petition; or

5.6.2 Holding an inquiry; or

5.6.3 Commissioning research; or

5.6.4 Holding a public meeting; or

5.6.5 Giving a written response to the petition organiser setting out
the Council’s views about the request in the petition; or

5.6.6 Referring the petition to the Executive or relevant committee or
to an overview and scrutiny committee.

5.6.7 Referring a petition which relates to a traffic regulation order to
a meeting of the Portfolio holder for Safer and Stronger
Communities convened to deal with traffic regulation orders and
highways related matters.

5.7 Where the issue is one on which the Executive is required to make the
final decision, the Council will decide whether to make
recommendations to inform that decision.

5.8 The chairman shall have discretion to extend the period allowed for the
receipt and discussion of petitions, in the event that any petitions of
which notice has been given remain to be received.

5.9 The Monitoring Officer shall within 5 clear working days of the date of
the Council agreeing its response to the petition:-

5.9.1 Notify the petition organiser in writing of the steps the Council
has taken or proposes to take in response to the petition and
the reason for doing so; and

5.9.2 Publish that notification on the Council’s website, unless in
his/her reasonable opinion, in all circumstances, it would be
inappropriate to do so.

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 3.

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 5

Deleted: : October

Deleted: 20

Deleted: 09

Agenda Item 9
Page 233



Update 1 May 2010 Part A4 / Page 12

5.10 Where a petition has been referred to the Executive, the relevant
committee, an overview and scrutiny committee or the Portfolio holder
for Safer and Stronger Communities, the notification shall include the
date and time of the meeting at which the petition will be considered
and details of the petitioners’ rights to speak under the provisions of this
procedure.

6. Petitions presented at or referred to the Executive or Committees

6.1 Where petitions are presented directly to the Executive or a committee,
or referred to the Executive or a committee from the Council, they will
be considered in the order that they are received on the basis of the
following procedure:-

6.1.1 Petitions should be presented by either:-

6.1.1.1 The lead petitioner; or

6.1.1.2 An individual nominated by the lead petitioner; or

6.1.1.3 A member of the Council on behalf of the lead
petitioner

who shall be entitled to speak for no more than 3 minutes to
summarise the contents of the petition.

6.2 The Executive or committee will take one of the following steps in
relation to the petition:-

6.2.1 Giving effect to the request in the petition; or

6.2.2 Holding an inquiry; or

6.2.3 Commissioning research; or

6.2.4 Holding a public meeting; or

6.2.5 Giving a written response to the petition organiser setting out
the Executive’s or committee’s views about the request in the
petition; or

6.2.6 Referring the petition to an overview and scrutiny committee; or

6.2.7 Referring the petition to the full Council.

6.2.8 Referring a petition which relates to a traffic regulation order to
a meeting of the Portfolio holder for Safer and Stronger
Communities convened to deal with traffic regulation orders and
highways related matters.

Formatted: Normal, Justified,
Tabs: Not at -0.74 cm + 0 cm
+ 1.73 cm + 2.69 cm

Formatted Table

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 5

Deleted: the

Deleted: has been

Deleted: cil

Deleted: that body shall take
one of the following steps in
relation to the petition:-¶

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 1

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 1

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 1

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 1

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 1

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 1

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 1

Deleted: 7

Deleted: : October

Deleted: 20

Deleted: 09

Agenda Item 9
Page 234



Update 1 May 2010 Part A4 / Page 13

6.3 The Monitoring Officer shall within 5 clear working days of the date of
the Executive or relevant committee agreeing its response to the
petition:-

6.3.1 Notify the petition organiser in writing of the steps the Executive
or committee has taken or proposes to take in response to the
petition and the reason for doing so; and

6.3.2 Publish that notification on the Council’s website, unless in
his/her reasonable opinion, in all circumstances, it would be
inappropriate to do so.

6.4 Where a petition has been referred to the Council, an overview and
scrutiny committee or the Portfolio holder for Safer and Stronger
Communities, the notification shall include the date and time of the
meeting at which the petition will be considered and details of the
petitioners’ rights to speak under the provisions of this procedure.

7. Petitions referred to meetings of the Portfolio holder for Safer and
Stronger Communities

7.1 Where petitions are presented directly to a meeting of the Portfolio
holder for Safer and Stronger Communities, or referred to the Portfolio
holder from the Council or Executive, they will be considered in the
order that they are received on the basis of the following procedure:-

7.1.1 Petitions should be presented by either:-

7.1.1.1 The lead petitioner; or

7.1.1.2 An individual nominated by the lead petitioner; or

7.1.1.3 A member of the Council on behalf of the lead
petitioner.

Who shall be entitled to speak for no more than 3 minutes to
summarise the contents of the petition.

7.2 The Portfolio holder shall take one of the following steps in relation to
the petition:-

7.2.1 Giving effect to the request in the petition; or

7.2.2 Holding an inquiry; or

7.2.3 Commissioning research; or

7.2.4 Holding a public meeting: or

Formatted Table

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 2

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 2

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 2

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 1

Deleted:Where the petition
has been referred to a meeting
of the Portfolio holder for Safer
and Stronger Communities,

Deleted: t

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 1

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 1

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 1

Deleted: : October

Deleted: 20

Deleted: 09

Agenda Item 9
Page 235



Update 1 May 2010 Part A4 / Page 14

7.2.5 Giving a written response to the petition organiser setting out
the Portfolio holder’s views about the request in the petition; or

7.2.6 Referring the petition to an overview and scrutiny committee; or

7.2.7 Referring the petition back to the Executive where the Portfolio
holder considers it appropriate having regard to the
circumstances relating to the petition in question.

7.3 The Monitoring Officer shall within 5 clear working days of the date of
the Portfolio holder agreeing his response to the petition:-

7.3.1 Notify the petition organiser in writing of the steps the Portfolio
holder has taken or proposes to take in response to the petition
and the reason for doing so; and

7.3.2 Publish that notification on the Council’s website, unless in
his/her reasonable opinion, in all circumstances, it would be
inappropriate to do so.

7.4 Where a petition has been referred to the Executive or an overview and
scrutiny committee, the notification shall include the date and time of
the meeting at which the petition will be considered and details of the
petitioners’ rights to speak under the provisions of this procedure.

8. Officer Evidence

8.1 Petitions may ask for a senior council officer to give evidence at a
meeting of the relevant overview and scrutiny committee about
something for which the officer is responsible as part of their job.

8.2 Such petitions must contain at least 1200 signatures. Save as provided
in paragraph 8.3 below, the relevant senior officer will give evidence at
a meeting of the relevant overview and scrutiny committee. A list of
which senior officers can be called to give evidence can be found on the
Council’s website.

8.3 The relevant overview and scrutiny committee, or its chairman, may
request that another officer of the Council should attend before the
committee where the committee and/or chairman considers that, for the
purposes of addressing the concerns raised by the petition, it would be
more appropriate for that officer to attend.

9. Review by Overview and Scrutiny of Adequacy of Response to Petition

Formatted: Font: Bold

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 1

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 1

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 1

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 2

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 2

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 2

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 7

Deleted: T

Deleted: 7

Deleted: : October

Deleted: 20

Deleted: 09

Agenda Item 9
Page 236



Update 1 May 2010 Part A4 / Page 15

9.1 The petition organiser may, by giving notice in writing to the Monitoring
Officer within 10 working days of being advised of the Council’s
response, request that the relevant overview and scrutiny committee
review the adequacy of the response to the petition (ie: the overview
and scrutiny committee shall review the steps taken by the Council in
response to the petition).

9.2 Where such a request is received, the Monitoring Officer shall arrange
for the request, together with the response to the petition to be included
on the agenda for the next scheduled meeting of the relevant overview
and scrutiny committee.

9.3 The overview and scrutiny committee has four options having reviewed
the adequacy of the response to the petition:-

9.3.1 To agree with the steps taken or proposed to be taken in
response to the petition;

9.3.2 To call upon the Executive, relevant committee or the Council
to reconsider the matter; or

9.3.3 To make recommendations to the Executive, committee or the
Council to pursue a particular course of action; or

9.3.4 To refer the matter for consideration by the full Council.

9.4 The Monitoring Officer shall within 10 clear working days of the date of
the overview and scrutiny committee completing its review of the
response to the petition:-

9.4.1 Notify the petition organiser in writing of the results of the
review; and

9.4.2 Publish that notification on the Council’s website, unless in
his/her reasonable opinion, in all circumstances, it would be
inappropriate to do so.

9.5 The presentation of petitions will also be subject to the general
principles governing public participation set out at paragraph 2 of
Appendix A.

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: : October

Deleted: 20

Deleted: 09

Agenda Item 9
Page 237



Update 1 May 2010 Part A4 / Page 16

Annex 3

PROCEDURE FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE MEETINGS WHEN DETERMINING

PLANNING OR OTHER APPLICATIONS

Applicants, agents, representatives of parish/town councils, councillors who have a
personal and prejudicial interest and members of the public, who have already
submitted comments in writing prior to the despatch of the Agenda, will be entitled
to speak (but will not be entitled to question officers or members) during the
consideration of a planning or other application at any meeting of the Development
Management Committee. Such entitlement to speak should be in accordance with
the following provisions:

1. Any person (meeting the qualifications above) who wishes to speak must
notify the Director of Sustainable Communities by letter, telephone, e-mail
or fax by close of business on the day before the meeting at which the
application in which he/she has an interest is to be considered.

2. The following procedure will apply in respect of each item:-

2.1 Introduction of item by officers and/or chairman;

2.2 Representations by parish/town council representative(s);

2.3 Representations by objector(s) or representative for all objectors;

2.4 Representations by applicant and/or any supporters;

2.5 Representations by a councillor with a personal and prejudicial
interest;

2.6 Opportunity for officer(s) to comment/clarify; and

2.7 Consideration of application by members, beginning with
representations by ward member(s);

(*Note 1. In view of the limited time available to each speaker, persons wishing to
make representations will not be permitted to make formal
presentations using visual display equipment.

2. Any information to be considered by the committee should be
presented to officers by midday 3 working days prior to the meeting to
allow for the information to be considered. No new information may be
presented during the meeting.

3. Any other councillor (not being a member of the committee) may also
be permitted to speak on an item.)

Deleted: : October

Deleted: 20

Deleted: 09

Agenda Item 9
Page 238



Update 1 May 2010 Part A4 / Page 17

3. The total time allowed for speeches in respect of each of the following
groups of speakers will not exceed three minutes:-

3.1 Parish/town council representatives for each parish/town council
that may have been consulted on an application who will be
authorised, in writing, to speak by the clerk or chairman of the
parish/town council on that council's behalf;

3.2 Objectors;

3.3 Applicants and/or supporters; and

3.4 Councillors with a personal and prejudicial interest.

4. Where an application affects more than one town/parish, the chairman will
have discretion to vary the requirements of 3.1 to 3.4 above where he/she
considers it conducive to the despatch of business and will not cause
prejudice to the parties involved.

5. In the event of there being no spokesperson appointed to speak on behalf
of a group of speakers referred to under either category 3.2 and/or 3.3
above, the order of speaking shall be the same as the order in which the
requests were received until the time limit has expired.

6. Where consideration of a planning or other application is deferred, public
participation shall be permitted on each occasion that such an application
is reconsidered provided that the notice requirements at 1 above have
been complied with.

7. In relation to any matter which is on the agenda or to be discussed at
Development Management Committee which is not a planning application
within the scope of this Procedure, the provisions of the general Public
Participation Procedure above will apply with the exception of paragraph
1. of Annex 1 (Procedure for Public Questions, Statements and
Deputations at Meetings) and paragraph 2.1.4 (General Principles
Governing All Public Participation) of Appendix A).

8. This scheme provides members of the Council with the only opportunity to
be able to speak where they have declared a personal and prejudicial
interest in the planning application. Such members must withdraw from the
meeting after speaking under this scheme.

9. For interpretation purposes, parish/town council shall be taken to include a
parish meeting.

10. This procedure applies only in respect of applications in relation to which
the Council is the statutory planning authority and has the power of
determination. Any application in respect of which the Council is acting as
a consultee is subject to the provisions of 7 above. Deleted: : October

Deleted: 20

Deleted: 09

Agenda Item 9
Page 239



Update 1 May 2010 Part A4 / Page 18

11. The chairman will have the right to stop persons from speaking at any time
if he/she considers the question or statement to be defamatory, improper
or outside the responsibilities of the committee.

12. The chairman of the committee may vary the order in which applications
are to be considered if he/she considers that it is convenient and
conducive to the despatch of the business and will not cause any
prejudice to the parties involved.

13. The chairman may vary or suspend the operation of this procedure in
advance of or during the meeting, if he/she considers:-

13.1 That it is necessary to do so for the purpose of maintaining order at
the meeting; or

13.2 That it is convenient and conducive to the despatch of business to
do so and that it will not cause prejudices to the parties involved.

Deleted: : October

Deleted: 20

Deleted: 09

Agenda Item 9
Page 240



Page 4: [1] Deleted CareyH01 20/05/10 10:57:00

2.2 In the case of any petition that relates to a consultation (statutory or
otherwise) being conducted by the Council (eg: on a planning or
licensing matter), the petition will be treated as a representation in
respect of that consultation and its report and consideration will be
the same as that determined for all other such representations
received.

Page 8: [2] Deleted JohnK01 13/05/10 15:56:00

2.
2.1

Agenda Item 9
Page 241



Page 242

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX E

D2 EXTRACT FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE
RULES

8. Members and Officers giving Account

8.1 An overview and scrutiny committee (or task group) may scrutinise
and review decisions made or actions taken in connection with the
discharge of any Council function or other matter that is within its
terms of reference. As well as reviewing documentation an
overview and scrutiny committee (including any task group) may,
in fulfilling the scrutiny role or responding to a public petition calling
for a senior Council officer to give evidence, require any member
of the Executive, the Head of Paid Service and/or any Director to
attend before it to explain, in relation to matters within their remit:-

8.1.1 Any particular decision or series of decisions;

8.1.2 The extent to which the actions taken implement Council
policy; and/or

8.1.3 Their performance.

8.2 In respect of a public petition calling for a senior officer to give
evidence, an overview and scrutiny committee or its Chairman,
acting on the committee’s behalf, may request that another officer
of the Council attend instead, where it considers that, for the
purposes of addressing the concerns raised by the petition, it is
more appropriate for that officer to attend.

8.3 The overview and scrutiny committee, or its Chairman may also
wish to invite the relevant portfolio holder with responsibility for the
service area concerned.

8.4 An overview and scrutiny committee may also require any Council
member who has been granted local ward member powers (for
instance a delegated budget) under Section 236 of the Local
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 to attend
before it to answer questions on any function which the member
has power to exercise.

8.5 Save as provided in Rule 8.2, it is the duty of those persons
described in Rules 8.1 and 8.2 to attend if so required.

Formatted Table

Deleted: 2

Deleted: 3

Deleted: I

Agenda Item 9
Page 243



8.6 Where any member or officer is required to attend an overview and
scrutiny committee or a task group under this provision, the
committee administrator will inform that member or officer in
writing, giving at least 5 clear working days notice of a meeting of
the overview and scrutiny committee meeting at which he/she is
required to attend. The notice will state the nature of the item on
which he/she is required to attend to give account and whether any
papers are required to be produced for the committee.

8.7 Where the account to be given to the committee will require the
production of a report, then the member or officer concerned will
be given at least 7 clear working days notice to allow for
preparation of that documentation.

8.8 Where, in exceptional circumstances, the member or officer is
unable to attend on the required date, then the overview and
scrutiny committee shall, in consultation with the member or
officer, arrange an alternative date for attendance, which shall be
no later than the next scheduled meeting.

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 6

Agenda Item 9
Page 244



27/05/10 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Central 
Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 

  

 
 
CONSTITUTION ADVISORY GROUP 

 
DATE:  1 June 2010 
 
 

 ITEM NO. TITLE Variations to the Scheme of Delegation to 
Officers 
 

  

REPORT OF Head of Democratic Services   

 

PURPOSE To advise the Group of changes approved by the Leader of the 
Council to the Scheme of Delegation to Officers. 

 
ORIGIN OF 
PROPOSAL 

Leader of Council/ Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Children’s 
Services 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
To note the revisions to the Scheme of Delegation to Officers now submitted. 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
1. As  the Advisory Group is aware, the Leader of the Council has authority under 

Paragraph 3 of the Executive Procedure Rules to delegate Executive functions 
or amend existing delegations. 
 

2. The following new delegation has been approved by the Leader. 
 

 Function Qualifications (if any) 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 245



27/05/10 

 

 To be responsible for the 
administration and planning of the 14 
– 19 Commissioning process, 
including the administration and 
allocation of funding to commissioned 
post 16 Education and Skills providers 
in accordance with the functions 
transferred from the learning and 
Skills Councils to the Local Authority. 
 

After consultation with the relevant 
portfolio holder 

3. It is anticipated that the Leader will approve the following change shortly:- 
 

 Current Delegation No. 4.4.2  
  

Function 
 

 
Qualification (if any) 

 To carry out the functions of the 
Council as a Children’s Services 
Authority including those functions 
referred to in  Section 18 (1) of the 
Children Act 2004 (as amended from 
time to time).  
. 

None 

 Revised Delegation No. 4.4.2 
 

 

  
Function 
 

 
Qualification (if any) 

 To carry out those functions of the 
Council as a Children’s Services 
Authority including those functions 
referred to in  Section 18 of the 
Children Act 2004 (as amended from 
time to time).  
 

None 

4. The revision above is required to correct an error whereby the original 
delegation refers only to Section 18 (1) of the 2004 Act when it was intended 
to refer to the whole of Section 18. 
 

5. The Advisory Group is requested to note the variation set out in paragraph 2 
above  and  the anticipated further variation to the Scheme of Delegation as 
indicated in paragraph 3. 
 

 

 
Contact Officer Details:  Key Background Papers: 

Kathrin John  None 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 246



26/05/10 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Central 
Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 

  

 
 
CONSTITUTION ADVISORY GROUP 

 
DATE:  1 June 2010 
 
 
TITLE Work Programme 

REPORT OF Head of Democratic Services 

 

PURPOSE To consider the future work programme for the Group 

 
ORIGIN OF 
PROPOSAL CAG minute 31, meeting held on 9 November 2009 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
That the Advisory Group review the draft work programme at Appendix A. 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
1. The draft work programme for the Group is set out at Appendix A for 

consideration. 
 

2. The Advisory Group is invited to review the work programme and amend as 
appropriate. 

 

 
Contact Officer Details:  Key Background Papers: 

Kathrin John  Notes of previous meetings. 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 247



Page 248

This page is intentionally left blank



         Appendix A 
 

Constitution Advisory Group 
 

Work Programme 
 

Date Task 
 

June 2010 • Petitions procedure (dependant 
upon production of final statutory 
guidance) 

• Public participation for Local 
Council representatives at 
Development Management 
meetings 

 
July 2010  • Review of the schemes of 

delegation to officers of unitary 
councils within the CIPFA 
comparator group 

• Review of non-statutory non-
executive committees and their 
roles 

• Display of Constitution on the 
website – progress review and 
update 

 
 

October 2010  • Review of items for Policy 
Framework 

 
December 2010   

 
January/February 2011  

 
March 2011  

 
 
In addition at each meeting, all changes to Executive delegations approved by 
the Leader of the Council will be reported for information. 

Agenda Item 11
Page 249



Page 250

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Notes of the previous meeting
	4 Review of the Policy Framework - New Regulations on Children's Trusts, Children and Young People's Plans and Child Poverty.
	5 Review of consultation and negotiation arrangements with Professional Associations (JCNC)
	100601 item 8.1 CAG JCNC Review V1 Appendix

	6 Consultation Strategy
	7 Public Participation at Development Management Committee
	100601 item 4.1 Public Speaking at Dev Man
	100601 item 4.2 Town and Parish

	8 Call-in of planning applications by Members to Development Management Committee
	9 Petitions
	Item 10 - 100517 Petitions Scheme Report to CAG Appendix A
	Item 10 - 100517 report to CAG  Petitions Scheme Appendix B
	iTEM 10 100517 Report to Cag App C CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE PETITION SCHEME
	Item 10 - 100517 APPENDIX D  Part A4 - Citizens and the Council
	Item 10 - 100517 Report to CAG APPENDIX E

	10 Amendments to the Constitution
	11 Work Programme
	100601 item 8.1 workplanappendix


